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THE CHANGE TO ACCRUAL ACCOUNTING AND ITS IMPACT

Why change?

The Furopean Communities undertook to fall into line with the approach adopted by many States, and
supported by international bodies such as IFAC! and OECD, by modernising their accounts. This
entailed a change from a system of accounts focusing on a cash-based description of budget
expenditure and revenue operations to an accrual accounting system.

The objective was to provide better information to management for their decision making and to
improve the transparency and quality of the accounting information presented annually. The new
system should ensure that both the internal users of the system and the external readers of the accounts
have more reliable and relevant information.

The work done

The work started in earnest in 2003 with the commencement of the “modernisation of the accounting
system” project, which had the aim of placing the European Communities at the forefront of the
international movement towards the modernisation of public sector accounting,

As planned, in January 2005 the new accounting system came into use, together with a new set of
accounting rules and a new chart of accounts. Thus these are the first set of financial statements
prepared under the new accrual accounting rules (the budget accounts are still based on movements of
cash.) These new rules and methods are inspired by internationally accepted standards for the public
sector - the IPSAS - and, for accounting transactions that are not yet covered by IPSAS, on the relevant
International Accounting Standards (“IAS”)/ International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”.)
These rules have been adopted by the Accounting Officer of the Commission after receiving the
opinion of an Advisory Expert Group for Accounting Standards that provided independent
professional guidance. The IT architecture was updated to ensure that each accounting event, and not
just cash movement, would be fully registered when it occurs. Improvements will continue to be made
to the IT systems to further the integration of systems and to provide better management reporting,.
Finally, the scope of consolidation was extended in 2005 to include the various Communities’ agencies
for the first time.

The end result was the preparation of a balance sheet at 31/12/2004 based on the new accounting rules.

The main impact of the changes

The tirst impact to be noted is that the balance sheet and off-balance sheet presented here in relation to
the prior year (2004) will differ from those published in the 2004 annual accounts, since they are
prepared under different rules. The Communities have thus taken the original 2004 figures, as prepared
under the old rules and made adjustments to bring them into line with the new rules.

The application of accrual accounting principles essentially means that income and expenditure is
recorded in the accounts when it is earned/incurred and not just if cash is received/paid. The four
biggest impacts on the tinancial statements of this change ot accounting rules were as tollows:

1. Pre-financing: An asset called pre-financing is now recognised on the Communities’ balance
sheet representing advances paid to beneficiaries with the intention to provide them with a
float. The amount on the balance sheet represents money that the beneficiary has not yet used
or for which (s)he has not yet submitted reports/claims detailing how this money was spent.
Total pre-financing at 31/12/2004 was EUR 28 billion, which is a significant addition to the
balance sheet (see PART [, Section E, notes 3.5 & 3.9).

International Federation of Accountants.
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2. Current Payables: Amounts are now recognised in the accounting system as costs and payables
as soon as they are deemed incurred and eligible by the authorising services. Because of the
new IT tools and rules, the restated balance sheet at 31/12/2004 shows a figure of EUR 9.4
billion recorded as current payables (see PART I, Section E, note 3.18.2).

3. Cut-off: A key element of accrual accounting is ensuring that income and expenses are
recorded in the accounting period to which they relate. Therefore, a significant exercise was
performed by the European Communities to estimate the accounting entries that needed to be
made at year-end to ensure that the correct split of income and expenses between the two years
was made. These types of transactions are known as “cut-off” transactions and a common
example is that electricity costs for December 2004 should be included in the accounts of 2004
even if no invoice is received until 2005 and no payment is made until 2005. The inclusion of
these amounts has meant an inclusion of accrued expenses at 31/12/2004 of EUR 64.2 billion
(see PART I, Section E, note 3.18.4)

4. Pension receivable from Member States: As part of the application the new accounting rules, it
was decided by the Commission’s Accounting Officer, following advice from and discussions
with the Advisory Expert Group for Accounting Standards, that the guarantee given by
Member States to fund the pensions does not meet the criteria necessary for it to be recognised
as a receivable on the balance sheet. The removal of this asset from the balance sheet at
31/12/2004 has reduced total assets by EUR 26 billion - (see PART 1, Section E, note 3.12).

A full explanation of the impact of the changes is given in PART 1, Section E2.

Amounts to be called up from Members States

Based on new rules, the Communities must evaluate and recognise in its financial statements the
expenditure to be financed by the general budget but which has not yet been declared by the year-end.
Thus very many expenses are recognised under accrual accounting rules in the year N although they
may be actually paid in year N+1 using the budget of year N+1. Nevertheless, the Communities only
call up resources from the Member States when they need money to pay an amount due, so as to give
Member States maximum flexibility in managing their public finances. This inclusion in the accounts of
the Communities’ liabilities, coupled with the fact that the corresponding amounts needed to fund
these are only recognised in future years, results in liabilities greatly exceeding assets at the year-end.

To present the facts of this situation in the most comprehensible way for the reader of the accounts, a
vertical balance sheet showing the Communities' assets first, then its liabilities was adopted. The
difference represents principally the amounts to be called up from Member States. The existence of
negative net assets simply reflects the difference between cash-based accounting and accrual
accounting for an entity which is financed according to its cash-flow needs. It does not take into
account the obligation of Member States to provide the necessary resources in the future to pay for the
expenditure incurred when it falls due. It should be remembered that the Communities cannot make a
payment unless it was foreseen in the budget and all budgeted expenditure is covered by budgeted
revenue from the Member States (see PART [, Section E, note 3.20).

A new structure

While the budgetary reporting was unaffected by the move to accrual accounting, the new financial
statements include much more information than before. Most significantly there are now an economic
outturn account, a cashflow table and a statement of changes in net assets to add to the restructured
balance sheet and off-balance sheet.

MAIN POINTS OF NOTE IN THE 2005 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
- The budget surplus has continued to decrease from EUR 2.7 billion to EUR 2.4 billion
- The economic outturn (loss) for the year was EUR 7.8 billion

- Total assets increased from EUR 53.6 billion in 2004 to EUR 58.7 billion, with total liabilities
increasing from EUR 105.2 billion to EUR 120.9 billion.
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BALANCE SHEET

EUR

NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 31,415,180,633.30| 30,142,730,492.69
Intangible fixed assets 3.1 26,676,624.50 17,137,089.53
Tangible fixed assets 3.2 4,141,220,250.32( 4,084,425,922.70
Investments 3.3 1,874,420,306.00  2,150,177,300.19
Loans 3.4 2,397,326,503.16|  2,298,277,591.00
Long-term pre-financing 3.5 22,731,731,325.85 21,284,928,692.20
Long-term receivables 3.6 243,805,623.47 307,783,897.07

II. |CURRENT ASSETS: 27,291,395,093.09| 23,450,507,504.46
Stocks 3.7 126,470,335.92 63,255,048.68
Short-term investments 3.8 1,439,652,311.41 1,442,821,890.84
Short-term pre-financing 3.9 6,633,481,985.52 6,727,929,511.29
Short-term receivables 3.10 7,237 854,523.321  7,139,062,014.64

Cash & cash equivalents 3.11 11,853,935,936.92 8,077,439,039.01
TOTAL ASSETS 58,706,575,726.39| 53,593,237,997.15

III. |INON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: 38,025,870,323.61| 30,556,735,482.10
Employee benefits 3.12 33,155,884,938.00( 26,012,130,886.00
Provisions for risks and charges 3.13 1,096,842,934.71|  1,013,020,111.03
Financial liabilities 3.14 1,920,492,514.34 1,688,032,288.29
Other long-term liabilities 3.15 1,852,649,936.56 1,843,552,196.78

IV. !CURRENT LIABILITIES: 82,825,446,775.06| 74,633,599,508.87
Provisions for risks and charges 3.16 275,440,997.63 240,240,253.60
Financial liabilities 3.17 22,018,193.71 152,154,480.63
Accounts payable 3.18 82,527,987,583.72| 74,241,204,774.64
TOTAL LIABILITIES 120,851,317,0958.67! 105,190,334,990.97

NET ASSETS (62,144,741,372.28)| {51,597,096,993.82)
Reserves 3.15 2,808,609,579.99 2,567,532,141.28
Amounts to be called from Member States: 3.20 (64,953,350,952.27)| (54,164,629,135.10)

Staff Pensions (long-term)* (33,155,884,938.00)| (26,612,130,886.00)

Other amounis** (31,797,466,014.27)| (28,152,498,249.10)

V. |NET ASSETS*** (62,144,741,372.28)| (51,597,096,993.82)

* Under Article 83 of the Staff Regulation, the Member States shall jointly guarantee the liability for pensions.

**  The Parliament has adopted a budget on 15 December 2005 which provides for the payment of the
Communities’ short-term liabilities from own resources to be collected by, or called up from, the Member States in
2006.

*** For more details please see the Statement of changes in Net Assets

13
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PART I

B. Economic Outturn Account
(including Segment Reporting)
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ECONOMIC OUTTURN ACCOUNT

EUR

OPERATING REVENUE: 4.1 107,890,098,965.56
Own Resotirce and contributions revenue: 103,964,129,385.85
GNI resources 70,861,050,698.58
VAT resources 16,018,121,497 .86
Traditional own rescurces 14,264,712,942.61
Budgetary adjustments 2,606,103,308.82
Contributions of Third countries {(including EFTA countries) 214,140,937.98
Operating revenue: 3,925,969,579.71
Fines 719,616,062.54
Recovery of expenses 1,385,693,507.89
Revenues from administrative operations 895,083,199.67
Other operating revenue 925,576,809.61
OPERATING EXPENSES 107,597,505,955.88
Administrative expenses: 4.2 6,127,531,024.91
Staff expenses 3,612,990,701.52
Fixed asset related expenses 320,308,630.81
Other administrative expenses 2,194,231,692.58
Operating expenses: 4.3 101,469,974,930.97
Direct centralised management 11,281,191,742.49
Indirect centralised management 350,673,116.96
Decentralised management 1,732,823,172.49
Shared management 86,925,465,101.27
Joint management 248,168,777 .58
Other operating expenses 44 931,653,020.18
SURPLUS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 292,593,009.68
Financial operations revenue 45 399,088,528.72
Financial operations expenses 4.6 {368,650,139.19)
Increase in pension liability 3.12 (8,044,529,533.33)
(DEFICIT) FROM NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES (7,721,498,134.12)
SHARE OF NET (DEFICIT) ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES 47 {(90,966,231.35)
(DEFICIT) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (7,812,464,365.47)
ECONOMIC RESULT FOR THE YEAR {7,812,464,365.47)

17
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SEGMENT REFORTING

This report gives the split of the operating revenues and expenses by policy area, based on the Activity
Based Budget structure, within the Commission. These policy areas can be grouped under three larger
headings - Activities within the European Union, Activities outside the European Union and Services
& other.

“Activities within the European Union” is the largest of these headings as it covers the many policy
areas within the European Union. “Activities outside the European Union” concerns the policies
operated outside the Union, such as trade and aid. “Services & other” are the internal and horizontal
activities necessary for the functioning of the Communities’ Institutions and bodies.

The consolidated agencies are integrated into the same policy area as the Commission activity from
which they receive their main Communities” subsidy. Other Institutions, aside from the Commission
are grouped in a specific policy area. The various policy areas represent gross figures before
consolidation eliminations and the consolidation eliminations are done globally in one column.

Note that own resources and contributions are not split amongst the various activities as these are

calculated, collected and managed by central Commission services. They are shown here so as to allow
for comparison of the net result with the Economic Qutturn Account.

18
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PART I

C. Cashflow table
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CASHFLOW TABLE

CASHFLOWS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

EUR

Deficit from ordinary activities: (7.812,464,365.47)
Cashflows from operating activities: 52
Amortisation 6,842,720.30
Depreciation 277,733,537 .93
Impairment of investments (11,983,099.95)
(Increase)/decrease in investments {62,602,039.59)
(Increase)/decrease in loans {(99,048,912.16)
(Increase)/decrease in long-term pre-financing {1,446,802,633.65)
(Increase)/ decrease in long-term receivables 63,978,273.60
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (63,215,287.24)
{Increase)/decrease in short-term pre-financing 04,447 525.77
(Increase)/decrease in short-term receivables (98,792,508.68)
Increase/ (decrease) in long-term emplovee benefits 7,143,754,052.00
Increase/(decrease) in long-term provisions 83,822,823.68
Increase/(decrease) in long-term financial liabilities 232,460,226.05
Increase/(decrease) in other long-term liabilities 9,097,739.78
Increase/(decrease) in short-term provisions 35,200,744.03
Increase/(decrease) in short-term financial liabilities (130,136,286.92)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 8,286,782,809.08
2004 Budgetary surplus taken as non cash revenue in 2005 (2,736,707,563.42)
Other non-cash movements 1.527,550.43
Cashflows from investing activities: 5.3
(Increase)/ decrease in intangible & tangible fixed assets (350,910,120.82)
{Increase)/decrease in investments 76,469,510.70
(Increase)/decrease in cash investments 3,169,579.43
NET CASHFLOW FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 3,502,624,274.88
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,502,624,274.88
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGININNG OF THE YEAR* 3.11 8,667.335,685.27
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR* 3.11 12,169,959,960.15

* Includes the cash of the Guarantee Fund (see note 3.11)
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PART 1

D. Statement of changes in net assets
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PART I

E. Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

2. Impact of the transition to accrual accounting
3. Notes to the Balance Sheet

4. Notes to the Economic Outturn Account

5. Notes to the Cashflow table

6. Off-Balance Sheet and notes

7. Financial risk management

8. Related party disclosures

9. Events after the balance sheet date

10. Consolidated entities

11. Non-consolidated entities
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1.1 LEGAL PROVISIONS AND THE FINANCIAL REGULATION

The accounts are kept in accordance with Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 1605/2002 of 25 June
2002 (O] L 248 of 16 September 2002, p. 1, with a corrigendum in OJ L 25 of 30 January 2003, p. 43) on
the Financial Regulation applicable to the general budget of the European Communities and
Commission Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2342/2002 of 23 December 2002 laying down detailed rules
for the implementation of this Financial Regulation,

Atrticle 133 of the Financial Regulation states that the Accounting Officer of the Commission adopts the
accounting rules and methods to be applied by all the institutions and bodies. Thus, he adopted the
new Communities’ accounting rules on 28 December 2004. These new accrual-based accounting
policies are inspired by International Public Sector Standards (IPSAS) or by default, International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as respectively issued by the International Public Sector
Accounting Standard Board (IPSASB) and International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). These rules
have been adopted by the Accounting Officer of the Commission after receiving the opinion of an
Advisory Expert Group for Accounting Standards that provided independent professional guidance.

The valuation and accounting rules adopted by the Accounting Officer of the Commission are applied
in all the European Institutions and bodies currently falling within the scope of consolidation in order
to establish a uniform set of rules for accounting, valuation and presentation of the accounts with a
view to harmonising the process for drawing up the financial statements and consolidation,

The Commission's Accounting Officer must submit the consolidated provisional accounts to the Court
of Auditors for audit by 31 March of the following year. The Commission must adopt the final
consolidated accounts by 31 July and they are then published in the Official Journal by 31 October
together with the Court of Auditors' statement of assurance.

Both the provisional and final annual accounts for 2005 are presented as follows: Volume I contains the
consolidated accounts, and Volume II the Commission's accounts.

1.2  ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The objective of financial statements is to provide information about the financial position, performance
and cashflows of an entity that is useful to a wide range of users. For a public sector entity such as the
European Communities, the objectives are more specifically to provide information useful for decision
making, and to demonstrate the accountability of the entity for the resources entrusted to it.

If they are to present a true and fair view, financial statements must not only supply relevant
information to describe the nature and range of an Institution's and Agencies’ activities, explain how it
is financed and supply definitive information on its operations, but do so in a clear and comprehensible
manner which allows comparisons between financial years. It is with these goals in mind that the
present document has been drawn up.

The accounting system of the European Institutions and Agencies comprises general accounts and
budget accounts. These accounts are kept in euro on the basis of the calendar year. The budget
accounts give a detailed picture of the implementation of the budget. They are based on the modified
cash accounting principle.2 The general accounts allow for the preparation of the financial statements
as they show all charges and income for the financial year and are designed to establish the financial
position in the form of a balance sheet at 31 December.

2 This differs from cash-based accounting because of elements such as carryovers.
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Article 124 of the Financial Regulation sets out the accounting principles to be applied in drawing up
the financial statements:

- going concern basis;

- prudence;

- consistent accounting methods;
- comparability of information;

- materiality;

- nonetting;

- reality over appearance;

- accrual-based accounting.

As the financial statements for 2005 have been prepared on a different basis than in 2004, ie. full
accrual accounting, in accordance with the Communities” accounting rules, adjustments were made to
the original balance sheet at 31 December 2004 so as to arrive at the opening, accrual based, balance
sheet at 31 December 2004 (for example, the inclusion of pre-financing amounts.) These adjustments are
explained in more detail in note E2.

1.3 CONSOLIDATION

The scope of consolidation of the European Communities comprises 26 controlled entities, one associate
and one joint venture. The complete list of consolidated entities can be found in note E10. In comparison
with 2004, the scope of consolidation has been extended by 16 controlled entities in order to comply with
the updated European Communities’ accounting rules.

Controlled entities

Controlled entities are all entities over which the European Communities have the power to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to be able to benefit from these entities' activities. This power must
be presently exercisable. The most common indicator of control, majority of voting rights, is in most of
the cases not applicable for the European Communities as there are normally no capitalistic links
between the entities,

The European Institutions falling within the scope of consolidation have been created through their
founding treaties. They represent the basis of the organisational structure of the European Communities
and contribute incontestably to the Furopean Communities’ objectives. These Institutions can therefore
be considered as being under the exclusive control of the European Communities.

Under the same approach, all Communities Agencies created through a secondary act of legislation are
considered as under the exclusive control of the European Communities and therefore are, for the first
time, included in the consolidation scope. Furthermore the European Coal and Steel Communities in
Liquidation (ECSC) is also considered as a controlled entity. However, the Office for Harmonisation in
the Internal Market (Alicante) and the Community Plant Variety Office (Angers), which do not receive
any subsidies from the General Budget of the Communities, are not consolidated in the 2005 accounts.

Controlled entities are consolidated using the tull consolidation method. All inter-company transactions
and balances between European Communities' controlled entities are eliminated. Unrealised gains and
losses on inter-entity transactions are not material and have therefore not been eliminated.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the European Communities have significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initally
recognised at cost.
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The European Communities' share of their associates” post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the economic outturn account, and their share of post-acquisiion movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the European Communities and their associate are
not material and have therefore not been eliminated.

The accounting policies of associates may differ from those adopted by the European Communities for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. For practicable reasons, no adjustments were
made to the associates' financial statements used in applying the equity method.

In cases where the European Communities hold 20% or more of a venture capital fund, the
Communities do not seek to exert significant influence. Such funds are therefore treated as assets
available for sale and the equity method is not applied.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Furopean Communities and one or more
parties (the "venturers") undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity. Interests in jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The European Communities’ interest of the profits or losses of their jointly controlled entities is
recognised in the economic outturn account, and their interest of movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the interest.

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the European Communities and their jointly
controlled entity are not material and have therefore not been eliminated.

The accounting policies of joint ventures may differ from those adopted by the European Communities
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. For practicable reasons, no adjustments were
made to the joint ventures' financial statements used in applying the equity method.

Non-consolidated entities

Not consolidated in the accounts of the European Communities are the funds managed by the
Communities on behalf of both the Joint Sickness Insurance Scheme for staff of the European
Communities, and the European Development Fund. At 31 December 2005 the total assets of both were
EUR 260 million and EUR 3.5 billion respectively - see note E 11.

1.4 CURRENCY AND BASIS FOR CONVERSION
Functional and reporting currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is the Furopean Communities’
functional and reporting currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into euros using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

35



Final Annual Accounts of the European Communities 2005

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the economic outturn account.

Year-end balances of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted
into euros on the basis of the exchange rates applying on 31 December 2005:

CYP 0.5735 LTL 3.4528
CZK 29.0000 MTL 0.4293
DKK 7.4605 PLN 3.8600
EEK 15.6466 SKK 37.8800
GBP 0.6853 SIT 239.5000
HUF  252.8700 SEK 9.3885
LVL 0.6962 usb 11797

Different conversion methods apply to the following headings:

- tangible and intangible assets, which retain their value in euros at the rate that applied at the date
when they were purchased; and

- pre-financing paid under the Guarantee Section of the European Agricultural Guidance and
Guarantee Fund, which are converted at the exchange rates applying on the 10th day of the
month following the month in which they are granted.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences are
recognised in the economic outturn account, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in the
fair value reserve. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the economic outturn account. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets classified as available-for-sale are included in the fair value reserve.

1.5 BALANCE SHEET

1.5.1 Intangible fixed assets
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (4 years).

Internally produced intangible assets are currently expensed in the economic outturn account.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as
expenses as incurred.

1.5.2 Tangible fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation (excluding land, works

of art and assets under construction) and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the European Communities and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the economic outturn account during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Land, works of art and assets under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Depreciation rates

Intangible assets 25%
Buildings 4%
Plant, machinery and equipment 10% to 25%
Furniture 10% to 25%
Fixtures and fittings 10% to 33%
'Vehicles 25%
Computer hardware 25%
{Other fixed assets 10% to 33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the economic outturn account.

Leases

Leases of tangible assets, where the European Communities have substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, are classified as financial leases. Financial leases are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other liabilities (long and short-term.) The interest element of the finance cost is charged to
the economic outturn account over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic interest rate on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The assets acquired under financial leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the assets’ useful life and the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion of the risks and rewards inherent to ownership are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the economic
outturn account on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1.5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
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154 Investments

Investments in Associates and interests in Joint Ventures

Investments in associates and interests in joint ventures are accounted for by using the equity method.
Investments in Venture Capital Funds

Classification and measurement

Investments in Venture Capital Funds are classified as available-for-sale assets and accordingly, should
be carried at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value (including
translation differences) recognised in the fair value reserve.

Fair value considerations

Since they do not have a quoted market price in an active market and in the absence of any reliable
valuation technique, investments in Venture Capital Funds are valued on a line-by-line basis at the
lower of cost or attributable net asset value (“NAV"} as reported by the fund manager up to the balance
sheet date, thus excluding any attributable unrealised gain that may be prevailing in the underlying
investment portfolio. Investments in Venture Capital Funds in existence for less than two years at
balance sheet date are valued based on the same principles, except in the case of unrealised losses due
only to administrative expenses where, in view of the early stage of the underlying investment
portfolio, these unrealised losses are not taken into account.

It should be noted that a “fair value method” has been recently developed by the European Investment
Fund in compliance with IAS 39. However, this method can only be applied to the European
Communities’ investments in venture capital funds at the year-end 2005. Indeed, based on the data
collected in 2004, it is not possible to restate the value of investments in Venture Capital Funds at
previous year-end. Consequently and for comparability reasons, the current valuation method, as
described in the above paragraph, has been consistently applied at year end 2005. The fair value
resulting from the application of the “fair value method” is disclosed in note E 3.3.3.1 for information
purposes only. The change from the current valuation method to this “fair value method” will be
effective on 1 January 2006 and the related adjustment will be recognised in the fair value reserve.

Under the “new method”, the fair value of investments in Venture Capital Funds is achieved by
applying the aggregated Net Asset Value (“NAV”) concept, which implicitly assumes that if the NAVs
of the funds can be considered as compliant with IAS 39, then the aggregation of the NAVs of all funds
will itself be compliant with IAS 39.

In accordance with this method, the funds are classified into three categories:

- Category I - funds that have adopted the fair value requirements of IAS 39.

- Category Il - funds that have adopted other valuation guidelines (i.e. AFIC, BVCA & EVCA
valuation guidelines) or standards that can be considered as in line with IAS 39.

- Category III - funds that have not adopted the fair value requirements of IAS 39 or any other
valuation guidelines in line with [AS 39.

For Categories | & 11, unrealised gains from the fair value measurement are recognised in reserves and
unrealised losses are assessed for impairment so as to determine whether they are recognised as
impairment losses in the economic outturn account or as changes in the fair value reserve.

The fair valued attributable NAV is determined through applying either the European Communities’
percentage ownership in the fund to the NAV reflected in the most recent report or, to the extent
available, the precise share value at the same date, submitted by the respective Fund Manager.

Investments belonging to category Il are valued at cost less impairment.
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Other investments

Classification

The Furopean Communities classify their investments in the following categories: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification of the investments is determined at initial recognition and re-
evaluated at each balance sheet date.

(i} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at
fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by the
European Communities. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they qualify
for hedge accounting. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are expected to
be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Communities provide money,
goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They are
included in non-current assets, except for maturities within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(iify Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments and fixed maturities that the European Communities has the positive intention and

ability to hold to maturity. During this financial year, the European Communities did not hold

any investments in this category.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the

Communities intend to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Initial recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the European Communities commit
to purchase or sell the asset. Loans are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the economic outturn account.

The fair value of a financial asset on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (i.e. the fair
value of the consideration received). However, when a long-term loan that carries no interest or an
interest below market conditions is granted, its fair value can be estimated as the present value of all
future cash receipts discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for a similar instrument with
a similar credit rating,

In the case of loans to officials granted by the ECSC in liquidation, the transaction price is used as fair

value at inception independently from any preferential interest rate granted, for practicable reasons and
based on materiality considerations.
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Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the European Communities have transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are included in the economic outturn account in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign currency and classified
as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the asset and other changes in the carrying amount of the asset. The translation differences are
recognised in the economic outturn account, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in the
fair value reserve. Changes in the fair value of non-monetary financial assets classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in the fair value reserve.

When financial assets classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the cumulative fair value
adjustments previously recognised in the fair value reserve should be recognised in the economic
outturn account.

Interest on available-for-sale financial assets calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the economic outturn account. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
when the European Communities right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If the market for a
financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the European Communities establish a fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models
and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

In cases where the fair value of investments in equity instruments that do not have quoted market price in
an active market is not reliably measurable, these investments are valued at cost less impairment.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. In the case of loans granted on borrowed funds, the effective interest method may not
be applied separately to loans and borrowings, based on materiality considerations. The transaction
costs incurred by the Furopean Communities and then recharged to the beneficiary of the loan are
directly recognised in the economic outturn account.

Impairment of financial assets

The European Communities assess at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred atter the
initial recognition of the asset and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (exctuding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
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discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the economic outturn account. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining
and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through the economic outturn account.

(i1) Assets carried at fair value

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the economic
outturn account - is removed from reserves and recognised in the economic outturn account.
Impairment losses recognised in the economic outturn account on equity instruments are not
reversed through the economic outturn account. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the economic outturn account.

1.5.5 Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. In exceptional cases, the Weighted Average Cost formula (WAC) can be applied.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When stocks are held for distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge, they are measured at the
lower of cost and current replacement cost. Current replacement cost is the cost the European
Communities would incur to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

1.5.6 Pre-financing amounts

Pre-financing is a payment intended to provide the beneficiary with a cash advance, i.e. a float. It may
be split into a number of payments over a period defined in the particular pre-financing agreement.
The float or advance is repaid or used for the purpose for which it was provided during the period
defined in the agreement. If the beneficiary does not incur eligible expenditures, he has the obligation
to return the pre-financing advance to the European Communities. The amount of the pre-financing is
reduced (wholly or partially) by the acceptance of eligible costs and amounts returned.

At year-end outstanding pre-financing amounts are valued at the original amount(s} paid less: amounts
returned, eligible amounts cleared, estimated eligible amounts not yet cleared at year-end, and value
reductions.

Interest on pre-financing is recognised as it is earned in accordance with the provisions of the relevant
agreement. An estimate of the accrued interest revenue, based on the most reliable information, is made
at the year-end and included in the balance sheet. Guarantees related to pre-financing amounts are
disclosed in the off-balance sheet as contingent assets.
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1.5.7 Receivables

Receivables are carried at original amount less write-down for impairment. A write-down for
impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the European
Communities will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the write-down is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
recoverable amount, being the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the market
rate of interest for similar borrowers. The amount of the write-down is recognised in the economic
outturn account statement. Also recognised is a general write-down in value of 20% per year for
outstanding recovery orders not already subject to a specific write-down.

See also note 1.5.13 below concerning the treatment of accrued income recognised at year-end
15.8 Cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term assets. They include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within financial liabilities under current liabilities
on the balance sheet,

1.5.9 Employee benefits
Pension obligations

The European Communities operate defined benefit pension plans. A defined benefit plan is a pension
plan that generally defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less any fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms
of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised immediately in the economic outturn account.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are
conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In
this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

1.5.10 Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when the European Communities have a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

The amount of the provision is the best estimate of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. Where the provision involves a large number of items, the
obligation is estimated by weighting all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities (“expected
value” method).

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of the provision is the present value
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of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The discount rate used is a rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability but
not the risks for which future cash flows estimates have been adjusted.

1.5.11 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include borrowings and held for trading liabilities.

Borrowings are composed of borrowings from credit institutions and debts evidenced by certificates.
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration
received) net of transaction costs incurred, then subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method; any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the
redemption value is recognised in the economic outturn account over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. They are classified as non-current liabilities, except for maturities
less than 12 months after the balance sheet date.

In the case of loans granted on borrowed funds, the effective interest method may not be applied
separately to loans and borrowings, based on materiality considerations. The transaction costs incurred
by the European Communities and then recharged to the beneficiary of the loan are directly recognised
in the economic outturn account.

Held for trading liabilities include derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting when their fair
value is negative. They follow the same accounting treatment as held for trading assets, see note 1.5.4.

1.5.12 Payables

A significant amount of the payables of the Communities are not related to the purchase of goods or
services - instead they are unpaid cost claims from beneficiaries of ‘grants or other Communities
funding. They are recorded as payables for the requested amount when the cost claim is received and,
after verification, accepted as eligible by the relevant financial agents. At this stage they are valued at
the accepted and eligible amount.

Payables arising from the purchase of goods and services are recognised at invoice reception for the
original amount and corresponding expenses are entered in the accounts when the supplies are
delivered and accepted by the European Communities.

1.5.13 Separation of accounting periods - accrued and deferred income and charges

As part of the move to accrual accounting, one important aspect is the exercise of ensuring that
transactions made during the year are recorded in the correct accounting year - a cut-off exercise:
transactions must be recognised in the period to which they relate.

In particular an assessment has to be made concerning eligible expenses incurred by beneficiaries of
Communities’ funds but not yet reported to the Communities (accrued charges). Different methods are
used depending on the type of activities and information available so as to arrive at the best estimate of
these amounts. Conversely, some expenses are recorded in current year although they relate to
subsequent periods (deferred charges) and those have to be identified and included in the relevant
period.

Revenue should also be accounted for in the period to which it relates. At year-end, when an invoice is
not sent and the service has been rendered or the supplies have been delivered or a contractual
agreement exists (i.e., by reference to a treaty), the amount should be assessed and recognised in the
financial statements as an accrued revenue.
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In addition, at year-end, when an invoice is sent although it does not relate to the reporting period, the
amount should be deferred and recognised as a decrease in revenues. The objective is to reduce
revenues for the amount equal to the deferral.

Since this is the first year of such an exercise, and given the particularities of the Communities’
activities, there are no benchmark methods available to compare these methods of estimation to.

1.6 ECONOMIC OUTTURN ACCOUNT

1.61 Revenue
Exchange revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the purchaser.

Revenue associated with a transaction involving the provision of services is recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date.

Non-exchange revenue
This makes up the vast majority of the Communities” revenue and includes mainly direct and indirect
taxes and own resource amounts. In addition to taxes the European Communities may also receive

payments from other parties, such as duties, fines and donations.

GNI based resources and VAT resources

Receivables and related revenues are recognised when the European Communities send out a call for
funds to the Member States claiming their contribution. They are measured at their “called amount”.
As VAT and GNI resources are based on estimates, they may be revised as changes occur until the final
data are issued by the Member States. The effect of a change in estimate is included when determining
the net surplus or deficit for the period in which the change occurred.

Traditional own resources

Receivables and related revenues are recognised when the relevant monthly A statements (including
duties collected and amounts due that are guaranteed and not contested) are received from the
Member States. At the reporting date, revenue collected by the Member States for the period but not yet
paid to the European Communities are estimated and recognised as accrued revenue. The quarterly B
statements (including duties neither collected nor guaranteed, as well as guaranteed amounts that have
been contested by the debtor) received from the Member States are recognised as revenue less
collection costs (25%). In addition a value reduction is recognised for the amount of the estimated
recovery gap in the economic outturn account.

Fines

Receivables and related revenues are recognised when the Communities’ decision imposing a fine has
been taken and it is officially notified to the addressee. If there are doubts about the undertaking's
solvency, a value reduction on the entitlement should be recognised.

After the deciston to impose a fine, the debtors have two months from the date of notification:

- either to accept the decision, in which case they must pay the fine within the time limit laid down
and the amount is definitively collected by the Communities;

- or not to accept the decision, in which case they lodge an appeal under Communities' law.
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However, the principal of the fine must be paid within the time limit laid down as the appeal does not
have suspensory effect (Article 242 of the EC Treaty). The debtors have two options; they can present a
bank guarantee for the amount or pay the fine provisionally.

If the undertaking appeals against the decision, and has already provisionally paid the fine, the amount
is recorded as a contingent liability. However, since an appeal against a Communities” decision by the
addressee does not have suspensory effect, the cash received is used to clear the receivable. If a
guarantee is received instead of payment, it is recorded as a contingent asset.

If there is a risk that the Court of First Instance may not rule in favour of the Communities, a provision
is recognised to cover this risk in the cases where provisional payment has already been received. If a
guarantee had been given instead, then the receivable outstanding is written-down as required. The
accumulated interest received by the European Communities on the bank accounts where received
payments are deposited is recognised as revenue, and any contingent liability is increased accordingly.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the economic outturn account using the effective interest
method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the European
Communities estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options} but do not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

In the case of loans granted on borrowed funds, the effective interest method may not be applied
separately to loans and borrowings, based on materiality considerations. The transaction costs incurred
by the European Communities and then recharged to the beneficiary of the loan are directly recognised
in the economic outturn account.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

1.6.2 Expenditure

Exchange expenses arising from the purchase of goods are recognised when the supplies are delivered
and accepted by the European Communities. They are valued at original invoice cost.

Non-exchange expenses are specific to the European Communities and account for the majority of its
expenditure. They relate to transfers to beneficiaries and can be of three types: entitlements, transfers
under agreement and, discretionary grants, contributions and donations.

Transfers are recognised as expenses in the period during which the events giving rise to the transfer
occurred, as long as the nature of the transfer is allowed by regulation (Financial Regulation, Staff
Regulations, or other regulation) or a contract has been signed authorising the transfer; any eligibility
criteria have been met by the beneficiary; and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.
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When any request for payment or cost claim is received and meets the recognition criteria, it is
recognised as an expense for the eligible amount. At year-end incurred eligible expenses already due to
the beneficiaries but not yet reported are estimated and recorded as accrued expenses.

1.7 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and of which the existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the European Communities. A contingent asset is disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and of which the existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the European Communities; or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because: it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation or, in the extremely rare
citcumstances where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential has become probable. If it becomes probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required for an item
dealt with as contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the financial statements of the period in
which the change of probability occurs.

Commitments for future funding

A commitment for future funding represents a legal or constructive commitment, usually contractual,
that the European Communities have entered into and which may require a future outflow of
resources,

Guarantees

Guarantees are possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of the object of the guarantee. Guarantees thus qualify

as contingent assets or liabilities. A guarantee is settled when the object of the guarantee no longer
exists. It is crystallised when the conditions are fulfilled for calling a payment from the guarantor.
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1.8  USE OF ESTIMATES

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements necessarily
include amounts based on estimates and assumptions by management based on the most reliable
information available. Significant estimates include, but are not limited to, amounts for pensions,
provisions for future charges, valuation of publications stocks, financial risk on inventories and
accounts receivables, accrued income and charges, contingent assets and liabilities, and degree of
impairment of fixed assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Changes in estimates are
reflected in the period in which they become known.
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Communities” opening balance sheet has been prepared in accordance with the new accounting
rules adopted on 28 December 2004, which apply for the first time for the financial year 2005.

2.2

PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual accounts include the following primary statements: balance sheet, economic outturn
account, statement of changes in net assets and cashflow table.

2.3

OPENING BALANCE SHEET

EQUITY RECONCILIATION

ELIR

Adjustments
L. NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 30,142,730,492.69 (4,143,923,005.85) 34,286,653,498,54
Intangible fixed assets 17,137,089.53 10,795,517.23 6,341,572.30
Tangible fixed assets 2.3.1 4,084,425,922.70 257,822,280.52 3,826,603,642.18
Investments 232 2,150,177,300.19 123,900,459.79 2,026,276,840.40
Loans 2.33 2,298,277,591.00 (30,831,701.00) 2,329,109,292.00
Long-term pre-financing 234 21,284,928,692.20 21,284,928,692.20 0.00
Long-term receivables 2.3.5 307,783,897.07 (25,790,538,254.59) 26,098,322,151.66
II. |CURRENT ASSETS: 23,450,507,504.46 7,700,336,944.33 15,750,170,560.13
Stocks 63,255,048.68 (5,972,804.31) 69,227,852.99
Short-term investments 2.3.2 1,442,821,890.84 46,841,216.60 1,395,980,674.24
Short-term pre-financing 234 6,727,929,511.29 6,727,929 511.29 0.00
Short-term receivables 235 7,139,062,014.64 263,155,996.45 6,875,906,018.19
Cash & cash equivalents 236 8,077,439,039.01 668,383,024.30 7.409,056,014.71
TOTAL ASSETS 53,593,237,997.15 3,556,413,938.48 50,036,824,058.67
ITi. |NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: 30,556,735,482.10 (1,143,539,962.90) 31,700,275,445.00
Employee benefits 26,012,130,886.00 3,744,986.00 26,008,385,900.00
Provisions for risks and charges 2.3.7 1,013,020,111.03 (1,254,230,501.43) 2,267,250,612.46
Financial liabilities 2.3.8 1,688,032,288.29 109,698,482.45 1,578,333,805.84
Other long-term liabilities 1,843,552,196.78 (2,752,929.92) 1,846,305,126.70
IV. |CURRENT LIABILITIES: 74,633,599,508.87 70,804,374,988.83 3,829,224,520.04
Provisions for risks and charges 2.3.7 240,240,253 .60 240,240,253.60 0.00
Financial liabilities 2.3.8 152,154,480.63 (74,095,519.37) 226,250,000.00
Accounts payable 2.3.9 74,241,204,774.64 70,638,230,254.60 3,602,974,520.04
TOTAL LIABILITIES 105,190,334,990.97 69,660,835,025.93 35,529,499,965.04
NET ASSETS (51,597,096,993.82) (66,104,421,087.45) 14,507,324,093.63
Reserves 2.3.10 2,567,532,141.28 1,512,263,917.43 1,055,268,223.85
Amounts to be called from Member States: 2310 | (54,164,629,135.10) (67,616,685,004.88) 13,452,055,869.78
Staff pensions (long-term) (26,012,130,8586.00) 0.00 {26,012,130,886.00)
Other (28,152,498,249.10) (67,616,685,004.88) 39,464,186,755.78
V. NET ASSETS (51,597,096,993.82) (66,104,421,087.45) 14,507,324,093.63
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The table above summarises the impact of the changes made to restate the balance sheet as at 31
December 2004 under the new accounting rules.

The presentation of the balance at 31 December 2004 (before restatement) differs slightly to that
published in the Financial Statements 2004. This is due to the reclassification of certain balances within
the balance sheet, made necessary to allow a relevant comparison with the restated figures. The original
net assets figure of EUR 14.5 billion (then called “Own Capital”} at 31 December 2004 corresponds to
the published figure,

Almost the entire impact is noticed in the accounts of the Commission and to a much lesser extent in
the ECSC in liquidation. The first time inclusion of the Agencies in the consolidation scope has had a
limited impact on the consolidated accounts, the main being an increase in cash balances.

2.3.1 Tangible fixed assets

The main change in accounting policy for tangible fixed assets relates to depreciation pelicy. Under
previous rules, newly acquired assets were depreciated for a full 12 months in the year in which they
were purchased (regardless of the date of acquisition). In accordance with the new rules depreciation is
applied from the month of acquisition. Historically therefore assets had been “over-depreciated”. This
and other changes in accounting policies have led to an increase in the net value of tangible fixed assets,
by EUR 69 million in the Commission, and EUR 137 million in the Parliament. The balance of the
increase primarily relates to the inclusion of the Agencies for the first time.

2.3.2 Investments

The investment portfolio of the Guarantee Fund and of the ECSC in liquidation, made up of debt
securities, was previously recorded at the lower of cost (or in case of premiums/ discounts, amortised
cost using linear method) or market value. These securities are now classified as available-for-sale
assets and consequently carried at their fair value. The impact of the valuation at fair value has been
accounted for in the fair value reserve and amounted to EUR 88 million.

The Guarantee Fund was holding three floating rate notes issued by the European Communities for an
amount of EUR 21 million, including accrued interests, as at 31 December 2004. These debt securities
have been duly eliminated against the corresponding debt evidenced by certificates issued by the
Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) program (see note 2.3.8).

The debt securities, amounting to EUR 38 million, held within the context of budgetary instruments
managed by fiduciaries on behalf of the European Commission were included in the net asset
calculation of these instruments and as such, classified as short-term receivables as at 31 December
2004. Under the new accounting rules, the components of the budgetary instruments are now classified
in the relevant headings of the annual accounts according to their nature and when applicable, residual
maturity.

Derivative financial instruments with a positive fair value including accrued interest (EUR 33 million)
are recognised as held-for-trading assets whilst previously they were only disclosed as off balance-
sheet items. The balance of the movement (EUR 33 million) relates to other reclassifications,
revaluations and the inclusion of accrued interest under this heading.

2.3.3 Loans

Loans with special conditions were previously recorded at cost less any provision for impairment.
Under the new accounting rules, these loans granted at preferential rates are initially recognised at fair
value which, in the case of loans carrying interest below market condifions, corresponds to the net
present value of expected cash flows discounted at the average prevailing EIB lending rate of interest
for borrowers in the respective countries, then subsequently measured at amortised cost. The
provisions for impairment, if any, are based on the provisional or definitive write-offs as provided for
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under the respective finance contract. The combined impact of the valuation of these loans at their
amortised cost (EUR -152 million), on one side, and, of their entire classification as non-current assets
since all have final maturities above one year after the balance sheet date (EUR 20 million), on the other
stde, has been accounted through the accumulated deficit account and amount to EUR -132 million.

Housing loans of the ECSC in liquidation granted at preferential rates were previously recorded at their
outstanding nominal amount less any provision for impairment. Under the new accounting rules, these
loans are initially recognised at fair value which corresponds to the net present value of expected cash
flows discounted at the market rate of interest prevailing for bonds with similar maturities issued by
the member states where the borrowers are located, then subsequently measured at amortised cost.
The provisions for impairment, if any, are based on the provisional or definitive write-offs as provided
for under the respective finance contracts. The impact of the valuation of these loans at their amortised
cost amounts to a negative EUR 21 million,

Loans granted from borrowed funds have also been classified as non-current assets when their final
maturity was above one year after the balance sheet date, increasing the balance of long-term loans by
EUR 123 million and decreasing the one of short-term receivables by the same amount (see note 2.3.5).

234 Pre-financing

Financial statements of the European Communities published prior to 2005 included, within short term
receivables, a limited number of amounts concerning pre-financing payments made on specific projects
(financial intermediaries). During 2004 an inventory of all open pre-financing amounts paid out up to
31 December 2004 was prepared by every Institution and body.

The balance shown for pre-financing as at 31 December 2004 is, however, this total amount outstanding
to beneficiaries at that date less accrued charges. These accrued charges represent the estimate of the
actual utilisation by the beneficiaries of the pre-financing amounts at this date, for which no cost
statements have yet been received by the European Communities.

As many of the projects funded by the European Communities Structural Fund actions are long-term in
nature, the related advances are available for more than one year. Thus these pre-financing amounts are
shown under both long-term and short-term asset headings.

2.3.5 Receivables

Long-term receivables have greatly decreased as the guarantee from Member States in relation to the
Commission’s pension obligations towards staff does not meet the accounting criteria, set down by the
new accounting rules, necessary to be recognised as an asset. Originally this had amounted to EUR 26
billion at 31 December 2004.

Short term receivables have increased due to the inclusion of accrued own resource income of EUR 2.3
billion at 31 December 2004. The overall movement on the balance however is offset by the transfer of
previously included pre-financing amounts, net assets of the budgetary instruments managed by
fiduciaries on behalf of the European Communities and portions of loans with final maturity above one
year after the balance sheet date, and accrued interest, to separate headings.

2.3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

The biggest impact of the inclusion of the Agencies was under this heading, being EUR 339 million.
Current accounts and short-term deposits, amounting to EUR 323 million, held within the context of
budgetary instruments managed by fiduciaries on behalf of the European Communities were included

in the net asset calculation of these instruments and as such, classified as short-term receivables as at 31
December 2004, Under the new accounting rules, the components of the budgetary instruments are
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now classified in the relevant headings of the annual accounts according to their nature and when
applicable, residual maturity.

2.3.7 Provisions

The balance on provisions has been revised upward by the application of a more precise discount rate
to the dismantling provision for the JRC (EUR 59 million). Following a more detailed review of pending
legal cases there has also been an increase in the specific provisions made for these.

The significant change has been that the provisions previously recognised concerning the Guarantee
Fund (EUR 1,086 million) and the ECSC in Liquidation (EUR 328 million) no longer meet the
requirements to be classed as a provision under the new rules and so are removed from this heading.
Reserves for the same amounts are instead recognised.

Additionally financial provisions (EUR 239 million) have been recognised within the context of
budgetary instruments whilst previously they were only disclosed as off balance-sheet items. Finally,
provisions relating to legal cases of EUR 81 million and provisions of EUR 21 million from other
Institutions and agencies were included for the first time (see note 3.13).

2.3.8 Financial liabilities

As with loans granted, borrowings with final maturity above one year after the balance sheet date have
been classified as non-current liabilities, increasing the balance of long-term borrowings by EUR 109
million and decreasing short-term borrowings by the same amount.

Moreover, debts evidenced by certificates issued by the Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) program
and recorded as long-term borrowings were subscribed to by the Guarantee Fund. These debts have
been duly eliminated against the corresponding assets held by the Guarantee Fund.

Derivative financial instruments with a negative fair value (EUR 19 million) are recognised as held-for-
trading liabilities whilst previously they were only disclosed as off balance-sheet items.

2.3.9 Accounts payable

The biggest impact (EUR 70.6 billion) on the balance sheet has been under this heading and it is due
primarily to two main exercises introduced by the modernisation project - the recording of invoices
and accrued charges:

- In accordance with the Financial Regulation payment appropriations carried over to the
following vear are entered as budget expenditure. Until the financial year 2004, the contra-entry
to these appropriations carried over and not yet used were to be found in the short-term
liabilities in the balance sheet. This classification no longer exists, since all outstanding debts have
been inventoried. The adjustment is included under “accounts payable.” Amounts of EUR 2.8
billion previously reported under this heading and relating to budgetary appropriations to be
carried over to the following year are no longer included following the intreduction of the new
accounting rules.

- All invoices, cost claims and credit notes received by the Communities are systematically
recorded in the accounting system. This process began in the fourth quarter 2004 and in January
2005 the outstanding amounts of EUR 9.4 billion were transferred into the accounting system for
the opening balance sheet.

- Accrued charges at 1 January 2005 totalled EUR 64.2 billion and represent the most significant

impact on the opening balance sheet in comparison with the published 2004 annual accounts.
These relate to current liabilities for amounts already due to eligible beneficiaries (Member States,
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Institutions, suppliers or service providers, individuals, etc.) but not yet recognised at the
reporting date since no cost claim or invoice has been received.

According to the new accounting rules, transactions and events are recorded in the accounting
systems and recognised in the financial statements in the period to which they relate. When the
amount cannot be recognised within the time frame necessary for the preparation of the financial
statements, the amounts that are known with reasonable certainty before the financial statements
are completed, should be recognised as accrued expenses. The recognition criteria foresee that an
expense is recognised by the European Communities for an amount equal to the estimated
amount of the transfer obligation due for the period.

In order to calculate the best estimate of the accrued charges, the Communities did an analysis of
all aspects related to the cut-off of a public entity. The Communities established an exhaustive
inventory of the applicable rules and considered the presentation in the financial statements.

The ultimate goal was to make sure the proposed methodology would reduce the risk that the
financial statements do not reflect a true and fair view.

The Communities then translated this designed cut-off strategy into operational and practical
instructions, including the recommended methodology and a description of possible techniques
by topics.

- The main amounts of accrued charges are for EAGGF-Guarantee: EUR 26.3 billion cover incurred
expenses between 16 October and 31 December 2004 which are declared by Member States
beyond the time frame necessary for the preparation of the financial statements, EUR 21.2 billion
cover market measures including direct aid (this consists of entitlements incurred in 2004 with
financial consequences in 2005) and rural development (this consists of eligible expenditure
incurred by operators or the payment authorities until the 31/12/2004, for which no payment
request was yet received by the Communities). Another significant amount represents accrued
charges for Structural Funds: at 31 December 2004 EUR 6.3 billion for the FEDER 2000-2006,
ISPA, innovative actions, EUR 5.1 billion for FSE. The remaining amounts of EUR 5.3 billion
cover accrued charges for other policies, the most significant of which is the research area with
+/- EUR 1.5 billion - see note 3.18.4.

2.3.10 Reserves and accumulated surplus/deficit

In accordance with new accounting rules, the adjustment to fair value of available-for-sale assets is now
accounted for through the fair value reserve (EUR 88 million}. The biggest effect on reserves was
however the inclusion of the Guarantee Fund reserve (EUR 1,086 million), which corresponds to the 9%
target amount and, of other reserves of the ECSC in liquidation (EUR 328 million). Previously these
amounts had been recognised as a provision.

All changes, other than fair value adjustments, required to restate the opening balance sheet where
made through the accumulated surplus/deficit account, thus the large impact on its balance.
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L. NON CURRENT ASSETS

3.1 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance. To be entered
on the assets side of the balance sheet, they must be controlled by the entity and generate future
economic benefits for the European Communities.

Intangible Fixed Assets EUR
Gross carrying amount at 31 December 2004 (restated) 43,147 ,504.22
Additions during the year 15,428,793.99
Disposals {473,054.00)
Other changes 6,445,391.79
Gross carrying amount at 31 December 2005 64,548,636.00
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2004 (restated) 26,010,414.69
Depreciation charge for the year 6,842,720.30
Disposal (200,762.00)
Other changes 5,219,638.51
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December 2005 37,872,011.50
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 26,676,624.50

3.2 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

3.21 Land and buildings

In some countries the value of the land occupied by Delegations cannot be distinguished from the value
of the building.

In December 20053, together with the Parliament, the Commission bought a building in Copenhagen
with a value of EUR 9.9 million. Each party owns 50%, although the Parliament paid the full amount
for the building and the Commission will repay its share to the Parliament during the life of the
building. In the same month, the two Institutions also jointly signed an acquisition contract worth EUR
7.4 million for a building in The Hague, but since the building was not put into use until 2006, it does
not appear in the balance sheet at 31 December 2005.
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3.2.2 Plant and equipment
Furniture and vehicles
Computer hardware
Other tangible fixed assets

For approximately 20% of the Delegations, there is no information available about tangible fixed assets
at 31 December 2005. An initiative is underway since January 2003 to improve the quality and
exhaustiveness of the information provided by the Delegations and this, as well as a specific inventories
project launched in 2004, should help to resolve this problem in the future. Furthermore, the integration
of the delegations’ transactions directly in the central accounting system in 2007 will also improve this
situation.

Adjustments as a direct result of these projects total EUR 3.6 million and are shown under the heading
“other changes” in the table below. The total net amount of tangible fixed assets included for the
Delegations at 31 December 2005 is EUR 72.3 million.

3.2.3 Finance leases (and similar rights)

The main building occupied by the Publications Office is not included in the balance sheet since it is
classified as an operating lease, Although the Office has two purchase options (in October 2006 and in
2010} with values based on the market value, it is not considered that the risks and rewards incident to
ownership of the asset are substantially transferred to the Office. The classification will be reviewed
later in 2006, when the first purchase option may be taken up.

On 21 September 2005 the Commission signed a 27 year finance lease contract for a building in
Brussels valued to EUR 50 million.

The Economic and Social Committee (ESC) and the Committee of the Regions (CoR) have entered the
finance leasing contracts for their Belliard building in Brussels on the assets side of the balance sheet. It
is co-financed on the following scale: ESC : 50% - CoR : 50%. The 27 year financial lease these two
Committees signed in May 2004 for another Brussels building has been included in the restated
opening balance sheet for 2005. It is co-financed on the following scale: ESC : 40% - CoR : 60%.

3.2.4 TFixed assets under construction

On March 2003 the Council signed a contract for the construction and acquisition of the LEX building
in Brussels, The estimated price upon completion is EUR 258 million as at 31 December 2005. EUR 64
million has been paid in 2005 as an advance for this construction and EUR 59 million in previous years -
in total EUR 123 million.

In October 2004 the Parliament signed a financial lease with a purchase option for a building complex
in Brussels and the construction began during 2004. In November 2004 an advance payment of EUR 40
million was paid. Until the signature of the provisional approval report the Parliament has the right to
make additional advance payments and which so far have been done as following (in Euro millions):

Balance 31 December 2004 EUR 40.0 million
Payments 2005 for work done in 2004 (incl. in the restated opening balance sheet)  EUR 82.3 million
Expenses for work done 2005 EUR 73.7 million
Total at 31 December 2005 EUR 196.0 million
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3.3 INVESTMENTS

This heading covers investments made with a view to establishing permanent links and/or seen as
supporting the activities of the European Communities. It also includes the net assets of the Guarantee

Fund.

Investments

LUR

Investment in Associates: EIF 185,570,299.80 175,976,040.60
Interest in Joint ventures: Galileo 141,459,169.43 89,283,659.98
Guarantee Fund 1,309,361,111.18 1,649,202,571.55
Available-for-Sale assets 210,520,545.57 204,797 460.68
Held for trading assets 27.509,180.02 30,917,567.38
Amount at 31 December 2005 1,874,420,306.00 2,150,177,300.19
3.3.1 Investments in associates and interests in joint ventures
Associates and Joint-Ventures
EUR

Amount at 31 December 2004 175,976,040.60 89,283,659.98
(restated)

Acquisitions 0.00 156,000,000.00
Disposals and withdrawals 0.00 0.00
Share of profit/ (loss) 12,858,259.20 {103,824,490.55)
Other equity movements (3,264,000.00) 0.00
Amount at 31 December 2005 185,570,299.80 141,459,169.43

European Investment Fund (EIF)

The EIF is the European Union's financial institution specialising in risk capital and guarantees to
SMEs. Under the Council Decision of 6 June 1994 the European Communities, represented by the
Commission, subscribed for a total of ECU 600 million of the EIF's capital, being 600 shares. This
represents 30% of the EIF's capital. The Commission has paid all the called-up capital, which amounts
to 20%. Payments outstanding on the non-called up capital (80%}) total EUR 480 million.

Under an agreement between the Commission and the European Investment Bank (EIB) signed in 2000,
on 30 June 2005, the Commission was entitled to seil its shares to the EIB at a fixed unit price of EUR
315,000. However, the Commission did not exercise its put option. On the same date, a new Share
Purchase Undertaking Agreement entered into force. Under this new agreement, the Commission is
entitled to sell its shares at any time to the EIB at the price corresponding to the EIF valuation divided
by the total number of issued shares. The formula will be based on the elements contained in the
annual report and annual accounts established for the financial year in which the sale notice is given
and approved by the general meeting.

The value of the put option is close to nil since the formula used for determining the sale price of the
shares is similar to the one used to determine the net equity of the EIF and since, in the absence of a full
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fair value exercise, the so-determined net equity of the EIF is deemed to be the best approximation of its
fair value, It should also be noted that the Commission has no intention to sell its shareholding in the
EIF as long as the Commission will continue to develop its venture capital funds and guarantee
programs in co-operation with the Fund. The put option was granted to the Commission by the mother
company, the EIB, for the sole purpose of giving equal rights to each shareholder of the EIF.

The equity method is used to value the Communities' share in the EIF, in accordance with the
accounting rules. Under the equity method the shareholding is initially recorded at cost and is then
adjusted to take into account changes subsequent to the investor's acquisition of a share of the net
assets of the controlled entity. The result of adjustments reflects the investor's share of the results of the
controlled entity.

Under the equity method, the shareholding is valued at 30% of the EIF's own capital. The EIF's balance
sheet for 2005 shows a total of EUR 618.6 million of own capital, including profits of EUR 42.9 million
for the year. The Communities' share is 30% of this amount (EUR 185.6 million), of which EUR 12,9
million concerns the result for 2005. A dividend of EUR 3.3 million relating to the financial year 2004
was received in 2005.

It should be noted that while the EIF is working towards the application of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) for its annual accounts, its 2005 accounts do not yet fully comply with these
rules, particularly with regard to the issue of fair value accounting.

Galileo Programme

For the implementation of the development phase of the Galileo programme, a joint undertaking,
within the meaning of Article 171 of the Treaty, was set-up by the Council Regulation 876/2002 for a
period of 4 years (2002 to 2006.) The aim of this legal entity is to ensure the unity of the administration
and the financial control of the Galileo programme for its development, and to this end to mobilise the
funds assigned to that programme. The founding members are the European Communities,
represented by the Commission, and the European Space Agency (ESA). The Commission, through
grants given under the trans-European networks (TEN} budget, makes available to the Galileo
undertaking the requested funds to co-finance the related activities of the development phase.

The Communities have subscribed for EUR 520 million of the capital of this entity and at 31 December
2005 EUR 438 million had been paid, with the balance, EUR 82 million uncalled.

As with the EIF, it is accounted for using the equity method of consolidation. For 2005 the
Communities' share of the loss of the joint undertaking was EUR 103.8 million. Thus the value of the
investment at 31 December 2005 was EUR 141.5 million being the investment of EUR 438 million less
the accumulated share of the losses, EUR 296.5 million.

3.3.2 Guarantee Fund

Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2728/94 of 31 October 1994 set up a Guarantee Fund for external
actions to repay the Communities' creditors in the event of default by beneficiaries of loans granted or
guaranteed by the Communities. This facility covers loans guaranteed by the Communities as a result
of a Council Decision, in particular European Investment Bank (EIB) iending operations outside the
European Union and Ioans under macro-financial assistance (MFA loans) and Euratom loans outside
the European Union.

In accordance with Article 6 of the Regulation the Commission entrusted financial management of the
Fund to the EIB under an agreement signed between the Communities and the EIB on 23 November
1994 in Brussels and on 25 November 1994 in Luxembourg,.

Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2728/94 on the Guarantee Fund, as amended by Council Regulation (EC,
Euratom) No 1149/1999 of 25 May states that with effect from 1 January 2000 the Fund is endowed by
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payments from the Communities’ general budget equivalent to 9% of the capital value of the
operations, the proceeds from interest on investments made from the Fund's assets, and sums
recovered from defaulting debtors for whom the Fund has had to activate its guarantee. The same
Regulation sets the target amount at 9%. In accordance with the Regulation, "if, at the end of a year, the
target amount is exceeded, the surplus shall be paid back to a special heading in the statement of
revenue in the general budget of the European Communities."

The Inter-institutional Agreement of 6 May 1999 on budgetary discipline and improvement of the
budgetary procedure provided that the general budget of the European Communities should include a
guarantee reserve to cover loans to third countries. This reserve is intended to cover the requirements
of the Guarantee Fund and, where necessary, activated guarantees exceeding the amount available in
the Fund, so that these amounts may be charged to the budget.

This reserve of EUR 1,231.2 million corresponds to the target amount® for the Guarantee Fund
calculated on the basis of the amount outstanding at 31 December 2005, The entry on the assets side of
the Commission's balance sheet of EUR 1,324.7 million before elimination of MFA debt certificates
represents the Fund's net assets at 31 December 2005. The difference between the amount of the Fund
shown on the assets side and the amount of the reserve corresponds to the surplus to be repaid to the
budget, i.e. EUR 93.5 million.

Net assets of the Guarantee Fund EUR

Current assets 1,324,663,957.25 1,670,814,232 53
After elimination 1,310,086,228.65 1,649,968,069.48
Short-term investments: Available-for-sale assets 1,008,639,934.02 1,080,917,586.27
After elimination 994,062,205.42 1,060,071,423.22
Cash and cash equivalents 316,024,023.23 589,896,646.26
Current liabilities (725,117.47) (765,497.93)
Net assets 1,323,938,839.78 1,670,048,734 .60
After elimination 1,309,361,111.18 1,649,202,571.55

The Guarantee Fund holds three floating rate notes issued by the European Communities for an
amount of EUR 14.6 million, including accrued interest, as at 31/12/05 (2004: EUR 20.8 million) these
bonds were issued by the non budgetary instrument MFA. From an accounting point of view, both
assets (GF) and liabilities (MFA) have to be eliminated at the Communities level.

The risk management policies of the Guarantee Fund are described in notes E 7.6 to E 7.9.

3.3.3 Other investments
3.3.3.1 Available-for-sale assets

This heading includes investments and participations purchased to help beneficiaries develop their
business activities.

Furopean Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD) investment

The EBRD was given initial capital of EUR 10 billion, of which 3% was subscribed by the Communities.
The proportion of this capital called up is 30%. On 15 April 1996, at their annual meeting, the Bank's
governors decided to double the amount of authorised capital. Under this decision, the Communities
have subscribed for 30,000 additional shares with a face value of EUR 10,000 each. This operation
involves called-in shares and callable shares in the following proportions: 22.5% of the subscribed
shares represent the number of called-in shares and the remainder will be callable shares.

3 The target amount corresponds to 9% of the amount outstanding.
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At balance sheet date, the Communities’ subscription to the EBRD's capital amount to EUR 157.5
million, of which EUR 147.5 million have been called up and partially paid. Payments outstanding on
called up capital (EUR 9.5 million) are recorded under long-term liabilities and accounted for at
amortised cost. As the long-term liability to be recorded can be compared to a long-term borrowing
that carries no interest, the fair value of such liability on initial recognition has been estimated as the
present value of all future cash payments discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest on
that date for a similar instrument (similar as to currency, term, type of interest rate and other factors)
with a similar credit rating.

Payments outstanding on non-called up capital amount to FUR 442.5 million and are included as
contingent liabilities in the off-balance sheet.

As the EBRD is not quoted on any stock exchange and in view of the contractual restrictions included
in the EBRD's articles of incorporation relating, amongst others, to the sale of participating interests,
capped at acquisition cost and only authorised to existing shareholders, the 3% European
Communities” shareholding in the EBRD is valued at cost less any write-down for impairment,

ECIP programme

This heading covers Communities' contributions to the provision of equity and subordinated loan
capital for joint ventures set up under the European Community Investment Partners Programme
(ECIP) in Asia, Latin America, the Mediterranean region and South Africa. The ECIP programme that
has been in existence for many years, but which was halted early, the only extension being its winding-
up. The programme cannot be definitively wound up until the last joint venture has been completed.
Most of the operations have already been wound up, recovered or converted into definitive grants and
work on the remaining open files is ongoing. A review of open files is currently ongoing to assess the
recoverability and thus the value of the investments,

Eurotech Capital, Venture Consort and JOP

The purpose of the Eurotech Capital instrument is to encourage the private funding of trans-national
high-technology projects developed by small and medium-sized undertakings through a network of
risk-capital investors. It covers payments made since 1990 in the form of pre-financing repayable under
certain circumstances when contracts run out. The Communities’ contributions do not constitute equity
stakes in the relevant venture capital companies. Rather they represent a fixed proportion of certain
investments of these venture capital companies in third companies. These contributions are
reimbursable according to conditions specified in the contracts between the Communities and these
venture capital companies.

The purpose of the Venture Consort instrument is to promote the trans-national syndication of risk-
capital operators in small and medium-sized enterprises. It covers contributions since 1985 for
investments in small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) engaging in innovatory projects.

The purpose of the Phare-Tacis Joint Venture programme (JOP) is to foster the creation and
development of joint ventures in the countries of Central/Eastern Europe and former Soviet states.

Since all three are risk capital operations, and even if some amounts may be reimbursed, it is very
difficult to assess the real present value of the contributions. In accordance with the principle of
prudence, a 100% write down has been made for the value of these contributions, which are therefore
entered in the balance sheet at zero.
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Other financial instruments

The "SME Finance Facility / SME financing mechanism" under the trusteeship of the EBRD is designed
to encourage investment funds to grow and to retain over the long term the capital investments they
make in SMEs in the Phare candidate countries. The programme is financed jointly by the Commission
budget, the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD), the Council of Europe
Development Bank (CEB), in association with the Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau (KfW) and the
European Investment Bank (EIB).

The "Growth & Employment - ETF Start up facility" (1998-2000 programme) and "MAP Equity - ETF
Start up facility" (2001-2005 programme), under the trusteeship of the EIF support the creation and

financing of start-up SMEs by investing in suitable specialised venture capital funds.

Shares were received in 1998 by the ECSC in liquidation as part of the restructuring plan of Eurotunnel.
These shares were divested in 2005.
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3.3.3.2 Held for trading assets

The European Communities use derivative instruments in the form of currency and interest rate swaps
or hedging purposes.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flow for another. Swaps
result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates (for example, fixed-rate for floating-rate)
or a combination of all those (i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps). Swaps, as detailed below, are used
to match the cash flows of loans with the cash flows of related borrowings.

These derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms, The extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable and thus the fair values of derivative financial assets
and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The ECSC in liquidation (ECSC) entered into the following swap agreements:

- In 1994, an interest rate swap was acquired to match the cash flow of a 14 years loan granted at a fixed
rate of 12,077% and designed with a 5 years grace period on interest payments and a final maturity on
26 March 2008, on one side and, the cash flow of the related borrowing obtained at a fixed rate of
6,375% and with a identical maturity date, on the other side;

- In 1990, a combination of both interest rate swap and cross-currency interest rate swap was acquired
to match the cash flow of a 19 years French franc loan granted at a floating interest rate (reset every 3
months and based on pibor 3 months less 21 basis points) with a final maturity on 13 March 2009, on
one side and, the cash flow of the related borrowing obtained in pound sterling at a fixed rate of
11,875% and with an identical maturity date, on the other side.

[ 26.03.2008

JF Morgan A+ to 00,000,000.00 b yearly
Chase Bank receive
N.Y., London
Branch
N/A N/A to pay | 100,000,000.00 | USD | 0% the first 5 years, 26.03.2008
12.077% yearly the last
following years
BNP Paribas | AA to 60,000,000.00 GBP | 11.875% yearly 13.03.2009
receive
N/A N/A to pay | 60,000,000.00 GBP | 3M LIBOR -0.31% 13.03.2009
BNP Paribas | AA to 60,000,000.00 GBP | 3M LIBOR -0.31% 13.03.2009
receive
N/A N/A to pay | 85,036,062.00 EUR | 3M EURIBOR -0.21% 13.03.2009

The fair value of the interest rate swap was obtained by discounting the net fixed cash flows using zero-
coupon swap rates on the balance sheet date.

The valuation of the combined instrument was performed in two steps: first, the interest rate swap
component was valued by discounting the cash flows (fixed and floating) that would result from
reversing the swap position on the balance sheet date (discounting is performed using zero-coupon
swap rates on that date); then, the cross-currency interest rate swap was valued by discounting the cash
flows (fixed and floating) that would come from returning the two floating branches of the swap with a
standard interest rate swap, taking into account the final nominal exchange transaction at maturity of
the swap.
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The fair value (including accrued interests) of the swaps with final maturity of more than one year after
the balance sheet date is detailed below:

Held for trading assets EUR

ECSC in liquidation swaps 27,509,180.02 30,917,567.38

34 LOANS
This heading covers loan amounts owed to the European Communities maturing in over one year.
34.1 Loans granted from the European Communities budget and the ECSC in liquidation

This item principally covers risk capital operations and loans with special conditions granted as part of
co-operation with non-member countries as well as housing loans granted by the ECSC in liquidation
from its own funds.

Risk Capital Operations

Risk capital operations are loans granted to financial intermediaries to finance equity investments.
These finance contracts do not have the basic and constituent characteristics of a loan as there is no
fixed reimbursement schedule nor interest rate agreed for the principal consideration and therefore, are
assimilated to indirect equity investments for valuation purposes. They are held at historic cost less any
provisions for impairment, as there are no quoted market prices available in an active market and their
fair value cannot currently be reliably measured. The provisions for impairment as at the balance sheet
date are based on the provisional or definitive write-offs communicated by the financial counterparts.

Loans with Special Conditions

Loans with special conditions are loans granted at preferential rates. They are initially recognised at fair
value which, in the case of loans carrying interest below market conditions, corresponds to the net
present value of expected cash flows discounted at the average prevailing EIB lending rate of interest
for borrowers in the respective countries, then subsequently measured at amortised cost. The
provisions for impairment, if any, are based on the provisional or definitive writc-offs as provided for
under the respective finance contracts.

Housing loans of the ECSC in liquidation (ECSC)

Housing loans are loans granted by the ECSC from its own funds in accordance with articles 54 and
54.2 of the ECSC Treaty. These loans are granted at a fixed rate of 1% and consequently, considered as
loans at preferential rates. They are initially recognised at fair value which corresponds to the net
present value of expected cash flows discounted at the market rate of interest prevailing for bonds with
similar maturities issued by the member states where the borrowers are located, then subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Lhe provisions for impairment, if any, are based on the provisional or
definitive write-offs as provided for under the respective finance contracts.

3.4.2 Loans granted from borrowed funds

Under the Communities’ Treaties, the Council, acting unanimously, has the power to adopt guarantee
or borrowing programmes if it considers this necessary to attain the objectives of the Communities.
Communities borrowings are direct commitments by the Communities itself and not by any individual
Member State. This item includes loans granted by Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) and Euratom
and the ECSC in liquidation,

66



Final Annual Accounts of the European Communities 2005

In accordance with the accounting policy described in note E 1.5.4, loans are initially recognised at fair
value, then subsequently measured at amortised cost. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial
recognition is normally the transaction price. However, if part of the consideration given or received is
for something other than the financial instrument, the fair value of the financial instrument is estimated
using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on initial recognition in an arm's length exchange motivated by
normal business considerations. In the specific case of Euratom and MFA loans, the borrower benefits
from a AAA interest rate, when under normal conditions, a spread reflecting his creditworthiness or
that of any party guaranteeing the loan would have been applied. The valuation technique here used
by the Communities takes into account the historical risk-free yield curve and assumes that borrowers
are allocated to credit classes. The historical credit spread for the relevant credit class and maturity is
used to infer the average risk-neutral hazard rate, based on a recovery rate that is appropriate for
bonds. The average risk-neutral hazard rate is then used with a recovery rate appropriate for
Communities’ [oans, to value the loan cash flows. Based on this valuation technique, the lower bound
value of a defaultable bullet loan with maturities of between 1 year and 20 years, for various values of
spreads consistent with the grading of the borrowers and recovery rates consistent with actual expected
recovery rates on Communities sovereign loans and, assuming a risk-free yield of 4%, is always close to
par. Consequently, it was considered as reasonable to initially recognise the Communities loans at par.

Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) loans

MFA is a policy-based financial instrument of untied and undesignated balance-of-payment and/or
budget support to partner third-countries. It takes the form of medium/long term loans or grants or an
appropriate combination of both and generally complements financing provided in the context of an
IMF-supported adjustment and reform program.

MFA is exceptional in nature and is mobilised on a case-by-case basis. It is in principle reserved for
countries geographically close to the EU territory which respect democracy and human rights and with
which the EU has important political, economic and commercial ties. The assistance is released on the
basis of the fulfilment of economic and financial policy conditions.

Based on materiality considerations, the effective interest rate method is not applied separately to loans
and borrowings. The transaction costs are directly expensed in the economic outturn account.

Euratom loans

Euratom is a separate legal entity of the Curopean Union represented by the European Commission,
The financial objective of this entity is to grant loans to Member States and non-Member States as
follows:

- Euratom loans to Member States are granted for the purpose of financing investment projects in the
Member States relating to the industrial production of electricity in nuclear power stations and to
industrial fuel cycle installations.

- Euratom loans to non-Member States are granted to improving the level of safety and efficiency of
nuclear power stations and installations in the nuclear fuel cycle which are in service or under
construction. Projects may also relate to the decommissioning of installations for which modifications
to upgrade its safety level to Western ones is not justified in technical or economic terms and which
would pose a safety hazard if simply abandoned. The financing granted may relate to investment
during the period between shut-down and the start of decommissioning and to the decommissioning
measures themselves. The financing of the decommissioning measures is considered only where no
provision to finance these measures has been made during the operating life of the installation.

Based on materiality considerations, the effective interest rate method is not applied separately to loans
and borrowings. The transaction costs are directly expensed in the economic outturn account.
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ECSC in liquidation loans

This item mainly includes loans granted by the ECSC in liquidation on borrowed funds in accordance
with articles 54 and 56 of the ECSC Treaty as well as two unquoted debt securities issued by the
European Investment Bank (EIB) as substitute of a defaulted debtor. These debt securities will be held
till their final maturity (2017 and 2019) in order to cover the service of related borrowings.

The changes in carrying amount correspond to the change in accrued interests plus the amortisation of
the year of premiums paid and transaction cost incurred at inception, calculated according to the
effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rates (expressed as a range of interest rates) were as follows:

Effective interest rates on loans granted from borrowed funds

Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) 2.039% - 4.54% 2.075% - 4.54%
Euratom 2224% -576% 2.241% - 5.76%
ECSC in liquidation. 2.241%-12.077% (*)| 2.276%-12.077%(*)

{*) higher bound value relates to the fixed rate loan covered by the interest rate swap (see point 3.3.3.2).
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3.5 LONG-TERM PRE-FINANCING

Pre-financing is a payment intended to provide the beneficiary with a cash advance, i.e. a float. It may
be split into a number of payments over a period defined in the particular pre-financing agreement.
The float or advance is either used for the purpose for which it was provided during the period defined
in the agreement or it is repaid - if the beneficiary does not incur eligible expenditures he has the
obligation to return the pre-financing advance to the European Communities. Thus pre-financing paid
is not a definitive expense until the relevant contractual conditions are met and so is recorded as an
asset on the balance sheet when the initial payment is made. The amount of the pre-financing asset is
reduced (wholly or partially) by the acceptance of eligible costs and amounts returned. When a pre-
financing amount is fully or partially accepted by the Communities, following analysis of the eligibility
of a cost claim received, then the accepted amount of eligible expenditure is removed from the balance
sheet and taken as an expense in the economic outturn account. In this way, interim or final payments
are intended to reimburse expenditure incurred by the beneficiary on the basis of a statement of
expenditure. This may clear the pre-financing amount in whole or in part,

Pre-financing is valued at its estimated recoverable amount. The Communities reviews its pre-
financing for “value reductions” whenever events, changes in circumstances or information indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset might not be recoverable. This assessment takes into consideration
the existence of a related guarantee attached to the pre-financing. The expected irrecoverable pre-
financing, or the amount for which recovery has ceased to be probable, is recognised as a value
reduction or charge in the economic outturn account. The corresponding amount is recognised as a
decrease in the pre-financing carrying value in the balance sheet.

At year-end outstanding pre-financing amounts are valued at the original amount(s) paid less: amounts
returned, eligible amounts cleared, estimated eligible amounts not yet cleared at year-end, and value
reductions. Guarantees related to pre-financing amounts are disclosed in the off-balance sheet as
contingent assets.

Interest is generally earned on all pre-financing paid out, except for amounts paid to Member States or
as pre-accession aid. This interest is recognised as it is earned in accordance with the provisions of the
relevant agreement. An estimate of the accrued interest revenue, based on the most reliable
information, is made at the year-end and included in the balance sheet. The ownership of this interest
designates the two categories of pre-financing existing - European Communities and Third Party. The
ditference between the two categories is that the interest generated by “Furopean Communities” pre-
financing amounts remains the property of the Communities and so must be returned to the
Communities, while that earned on “Third Party” pre-financing is the property of the beneficiary.

Long-term Pre-financing amounts EUR

Pre-financing European Communities:

Centralised direct management: Functioning grants 3,120,098.90
Pre-financing Third parties:

Centralised direct management: Operational 144,832,316.07
Decentralised management 106,081,969.40
Shared management 22,477,696,941 48
Total long-term Pre-financing 22,731,731,325.85

As many of the projects funded by the European Communities Structural Fund actions are long-term in
nature, it is necessary that the related advances are available for more than one year. Thus these pre-
financing amounts are shown as long-term assets. The Commission makes a payment on account
amounting to 7% of the total contribution from the Structural Funds once the programme is adopted.
The payment on account will have to be reimbursed if no expenditure is declared within 18 months.
The Commission then makes interim payments to reimburse actual expenditure certified by the
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Member State. The balance of 5% is paid on the closure of the programme once all the documents
required are submitted and approved by the Commission. Payments are posted to the earliest open

commitment.

3.6 LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES

Long-term receivables

EUR

2,325,657.00]  62,004,976.00
Due from Member States 134,827,865.00|  155,743,558.00
ECSC staff loans 20,101723.12|  21,004,999.12
EAR credit schemes 40,014,742.29 62,388,235.71
Guarantees and deposits 6,535,636.06 6,642,128.24
Total 243,805,62347|  307,783,897.07

The building contribution is primarily the financial contribution by the Belgian State to the purchase
and fitting-out of the D3 building for the Parliament, which came to EUR 176 million and is to be paid
over ten years ending in 2008. At year-end EUR 42.3 million is due greater than one year (2004: EUR 62
million), while a further EUR 21.4 million (2004: EUR 21.1 million) falls due within one year.

Amounts to be received from Member States refer to amounts due to the ECSC in liquidation from
former accession countries. The total contribution amounts to EUR 170 million and is to be paid in four
instalments on the first working day of each year, starting in 2006, in the following amounts: 15%, 20%,
30% and 35%. The net present value of these contributions was EUR 158.8 million at year-end (2004:
EUR 155.7 million), being split up between long-term receivables, EUR 134.8 million (2004: EUR 155.7)
and short-term receivables, EUR 24 million (2004: zero).

Also included above is an amount of EUR 20.1 million relating to loans given by the ECSC in
liquidation to officials of the European Communities. These loans are financed by the ECSC in
liquidation from its own funds and are currently managed by the Commission. EAR (the European
Agency for Reconstruction and Development) credit schemes refer primarily to Counterpart Funds and
Credit Line Schemes advanced.

II. CURRENT ASSETS

3.7 STOCKS

STOCKS EUR

Scientific materia 11,109,187.38 0.00 11,109,187.38 664,820.59
Fissile material 32,195,147.92 0.00 32,195,147.92 13,989,565.81
Heavy water 14,923.00 0.00 14,923.00 14,923.00
Vaccinations 6,857,590.00 0.00 6,857,590.00 6,857,590.00
For re-sale 63,561,282.00 0.00 63,561,282.00 36,834,072.25
Production materials 6,895,280.89 0.00 6,895,280.89 0.00
Publications 9,598,355.07 (3,761,430.34) 5,836,924.73 4,894,077.03
TOTAL 130,231,766.26 (3,761,430.34)] 126,470,335.92 63,255,048.68
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The increase in the balance of scientific material is because 2005 includes raw material amounts of EUR
10 million for the first time. The large increase in fissile material stocks is because there is no value
reduction made in 2005 as a result of a change in accounting estimates - previously an impairment was
made if there had not been any movements in the stock during the year, where as now stocks are
valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is also a reason for the increase in the scientific
material for re-sale. Another reason for the increase in these stocks is that EUR 20 million of stock in
production is now included under stock for re-sale,

The Commission keeps a stock of production material, valued to EUR 6.9 million, mainly consisting of
building maintenance material and spare parts used by the Joint Research Centres.

The stock of publications held and/or managed by the Publications Office for which a charge is made
(paying stock) is valued at zero following an analysis made in 2001. Publications not destined for resale
are valued on the base of average cost of stocks for re-sale. Stocks with low turnover have been written
down by 33% per year.

3.8 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments consist of available-for-sale securities, which are purchased for their investment
return or yield, or held to establish a particular asset structure or a secondary source of liquidity and
may therefore be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates. Also included are

held for trading assets.

3.8.1 Short-term available-for-sale assets

Short-term available-for-sale assets EUR

mounts 31,12, . 15,993,581.81 0,00 | 1,403,111,917.00 | 1,441,132,643.70
(restated)
Acquisitions 11,995,800.00 0,00 3,000,000.00 336,634,706.48 351,630,506.48
Disposals and (12,000,000.00) (12,000,000.00) {321,119,440.06) (345,119,440.06)
withdrawals
Adjustment to 7.,320.00 7.320.00
amortised cost
Change in carrying 49,867.11 1,104.19 0.00 (8,067,709.01) (8,016,737.71)
amount
Revaluation
surplus/(deficit) t/f 8,040.00 9,979.00 0.00 0.00 18,019.00
to equity
Amounts 31.12.2005 22,088,172.00 4,004,665.00 3,000,000.00 | 1,410,559,474.41 | 1,439,652,311.41

SME Guarantee Facility - ETF start-up Growth & Employment

All investments are AAA floating rate bonds denominated in EUR and quoted in active markets. At 31
December 2005 the nominal value of debt securities with a remaining duration to maturity of iess than
one year amounts to EUR 4 million (2004: EUR 24 million.) A new bond was purchased in 2005.

Ten Risk Capital EIB
Investments made under the TEN Risk Capital Facility (to date only one totalling EUR 3 million) are
undertaken by the establishment of a joint special purpose entity (jointly held by the FIB and the

Galaxy Fund, the TEN RCF partner), under the name of GALAXY - A28 for Trans-European Network
projects involving private sector investments. These investments represent an equity holding in the
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special purpose entity, and therefore should be recorded appropriately as an equity investment in the
Communities” balance sheet.

ECSC in liquidation

As stipulated in the internal prudential rules of the ECSC in liquidation, the investments are to be
confined to securities issued by first-ranking entities. All investments are debt securities denominated
in EUR and quoted in an active market. Details of the investment portfolic by issuer type and by rating
are described in note E.7.13. At 31 December 2005 debt securities (expressed at their fair value) reaching
final maturity in the course of 2006 amount to EUR 2374 million (2004: EUR 200.1 million),

3.8.2 Short-term held for trading assets

Short-term held for trading assets EUR

interest rate swaps 0.00 1,689,247.14

The Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) swap agreement, as detailed below, was entered into to match
the cash flow of a loan with a floating interest rate and a final maturity on 22 December 2008, on one
side and, the cash flow of the corresponding borrowing with a fixed interest rate and a final maturity
on 22 December 2005, on the other side. The swap agreement was structured in two “tranches”: the
“swap tranche”, where both floating and fixed rate legs were active, ended on 22 December 2005, the
second “tranche” with only the floating rate leg being a forward floating borrowing starting on the
same date.

BNP Paribas AA to 125,000,000.00 | EUR | fix € 4,531,250 yearly 22.12.2005
receive
N/A N/A to pay 125,000,000.00 | EUR | EUR-6M LIBOR -0.147% | 22.12.2005

The fair value of the “swap tranche” was obtained by discounting the cash flows (fixed and floating)
that would result from reversing the swap position on the balance sheet date (discounting is performed
using zero-coupon swap rates on that date).

3.9 SHORT-TERM PRE-FINANCING

The split of amounts outstanding between management types reflects the pre-financing payments
made during the year 2005 (comparative figures are not available for 2004.) The historic pre-financing
amounts are those first included in the opening balance sheet and are shown separalely on a single line.

Accrued charges represent the amount of eligible costs that were estimated to have been incurred by
the beneficiaries of the outstanding pre-financing amounts at year-end, but not yet reported to the
Communities. These amounts are taken as expenses in the Economic Qutturn Account. See also note 3.5
for further explanations concerning long-term pre-financing.
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Short-term Pre-financing amounts

EUR

Pre-financing European Communities gross amounts:
Direct centralised management Action grants 4,790,792,434.87
Functioning grants 111,387,513.26
Indirect centralised management Nafional agencies 620,077 ,642.63
Financial activites 63,518,496.96
Other 3,583,333.00
Decentralised management 195,456,099.10
Other 473,882,469.99
Pre-financing implemented by other Institutions and Agencies 6,482,306.56
Historic pre-financing balances® 5,254,181,771.25
Total gross pre-financing amounts 11,519,362,067.62
Less accrued charges:
Direct centralised management (5,891,600,089.98)
Indirect centralised management {1,376,200,198.71)
Decentralised management (122,922,410.00)
Other (169,505,546.79)
Total Pre-financing European Communities 3,959,133,822.14
Pre-financing Third parties:
Direct centralised management  Procurement 260,024,355.90
Operational 356,060,584.56
Decentralised management 361,009,093.23
Shared management 390,843,176.32
Joint management 317,053,334.83
Pre-financing implemented by other Institutions and Agencies 143,664,170.02
Historic pre-financing balances® 2,774,751,315.50
Total gross pre-financing amounts 4,603,406,030.36
Less accrued charges:
Direct centralised management (1,199,787,477.00)
Decentralised management {382,891,261.00)
Shared management (201,212,486.00)
Joint management (143,223,312.00)
Other (1,943,330.98)
Total Pre-financing European Third parties: 2,674,348,163.38
Total short-term pre-financing 6,633,481,985.52

* No information on the split by budget management type was available at 31/12/2004

3.10. SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES

Short-term receivables

ELIR

Long-term receivables due in less than one year 45,918,358.03 50,826,727.14
Current receivables 4,243,426,047.08 4,435,308,351.36
Sundry receivables 21,591,738.74 44,898,157 64
Accruals and deferrals 2,926,918,379.47 2,608,028,778.50
Total 7,237,854,523.32| 7,139,062,014.64
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3.10.1 Long-term receivables falling due in less than one year

These amounts totalling EUR 45.9 millicn (2004: EUR 50.8 million) represent primarily the loans with
remaining final maturities less than 12 months after the balance sheet date (see note 3.4 above for more
details) and the financial contribution by the Belgian State to the purchase and fitting-out of the D3
building for the Parliament (see note 3.6 above.) Also included are the short-term contributions owed
by former accession countries to the ECSC in liquidation (see note E.3.6 above.)

3.10.2 Current receivables

urrent receivab es ELIR

Customers 2,371,840418.60| (149,841,788.65)| 2,221,998,629.95 1,435,132,856.81| (177,742,051.83)] 1,257,390,804.98
Members States | 3,252,041,919.04(1,603,860,946.87)| 1,648,180,972.17| 3,976,072,649.01|(1,586,639,391.71)] 2,389,433,257.30
EFTA 29,607,404.80 0.00|  29,607,40480|  36,797,915.81 ol 3679791581
Third States 126,449,842.51 (627,693.54)| 125822,148.97|  77,282,595.98 0] 77,282,595.98
Others 229,666,086.81|  (11,849,195.62)|  217,816,891.19|  675,014,983.85 (611,206.56)]  674,403,777.29
Total (6,009,605,671.76) | (1,766,179,624.68) | 4,243,426,047.08| 6,200,301,001.46|(1,764,992,650.10)] 4,435,308,351.36

3.10.2.1 Customers

These are recovery orders entered in the accounts at 31 December 2005 as established entitlements to be
recovered and not already included under other headings on the assets side of the balance sheet.

In respect of imposed fines of EUR 4,274.7 million at 31/12/2005 a total of EUR 2,103.3 million was
collected provisionally. The balance of EUR 2,171.4 million is included under this heading, of which
EUR 1,465.7 million was covered by bank guarantees. The provisional payments (and related interest)
are applied against the related receivable and included as restricted cash under the cash heading. The
bank guarantees are entered as contingent assets in the off-balance-sheet. The amount shown in the off-
balance-sheet as contingent liabilities totals EUR 4,427 4million, being the total outstanding claims
pending judgement plus interest earned on payments received pending final judgement.

3.10.2.2 Receivables from Member States
Advances to Member States

In 2004 this amount concerned advances paid by the Commission to various Member States from the
Emergency Veterinary Fund for certain animal disease eradication costs incurred.

EAGGF Guarantee receivables

This item covers the amounts owed by beneficiaries of EAGGF Guarantee as declared and certified by
the Member States and entered in the debtors ledger at the end of the year (15 October 2005) in
accordance with Regulation (EC) No 2761/99 less 20% of the amount, which the Member States are
allowed to retain to cover administrative costs. The Member States are not required to make the
amounts available to the Commission unless they are recovered.

Additionally, and in accordance with the principle of prudence, the European Commission must
estimate and record the part of the EAGGF Guarantee that is unlikely to be recovered. The declared
estimate of the write-down is EUR 873.9 million (as estimated by the Member States), which accounts
for 59.3% of the total amount to be recovered at 31 December 2005 (57.4% at 31 December 2004.) The
Commission relies on the estimates of the Member States based on the assumption that the paying
agencies are in a better position to assess the amounts likely to be recovered. The findings of the
certifying bodies concerning management of amounts owed are handled under the 2005 clearance
procedure, including any proposal for the application of financial corrections. The fact that this
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adjustment is entered in the accounts does not mean that the EC is waiving future recovery of the
amounts covered by the write-down.

Receivables from Member States ELIR

Advances to Member States 0.00 500,000.00
EAGGF Guarantee receivables

EAGGF Guarantee receivables 1473,622,922.19 1,560,899,301.12
Value correction (873,943,547.28)|  (895,401,413.57)
Subtotal 599,679,374.91 665,497,887 .55
VAT paid and recoverable from Member States

VAT to be recovered 21,039,461.52 22,506,889.98
Value correction (1,628,334.45) (1,791,277.23)
Subtotal 19,411,127.07 20,715,612.75
Own resources

Own resources established in the A account, as laid 44,984 573.61 114,832,792.31
down in Article 6(3) of Council regulation 1150/2000,

and pending recovery

Own resources established in the separate account, as 1,410,925,222.84| 1,428,849,871.51
faid down in Article 6(3) of Council regulation

1150/2000, and pending recovery

Value correction (728,277,014.62) (689,442,098.87)
Other 201,639,674.07 497,629,295 47
Subtotal 929,272 455.90| 1,351,869,860.42
Other receivables from Member States

Late interest 1,289,335.32 46,650,783.13
Other 98,528,678.97 304,199,113.45
Subtotal 99,818,014.29 350,849,896.58
Total 1,648,180,972.17 2,389,433,257.30

VAT
This item covers the amounts of VAT paid by the Communities and recoverable from Member States.
Own resources

The separate account contains traditional own resources which, under Article 6(3)(b) of Regulation No
1150/2000, have been established by the Member States but not made available to the Communities as
they have not yet been recovered or guaranteed or because they have been challenged. Council
Decision No 2000/597/EC, Euratom of 29 September 2000 on the system of the European Communities'
own resources allows Member States to withhold 25% of traditional own resources as collection costs.

Each Member State sends the Commission a quarterly statement of these accounts, with the following
particulars for each type of resource:

- the previous quarter's outstanding balance,

- the amounts recovered during the quarter in question,

- rectifications of the base (corrections/cancellations) during the quarter in question,
- amounts written off,

- the balance to be recovered at the end of the quarter in question.
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When the traditional own resources from the separate account are recovered, they must be made
available to the Commission at the latest on the first working day following the 19th day of the second
month following the month during which the entitlement was recovered.

This figure overestimates the Communities' actual entitlements since the separate account for
traditional own resources largely consists of amounts where actual recovery is unlikely. For previous
years the Commission calculated a write-down of the entitlements in the separate account by using a
statistical method. From 2004 onwards this write-down is based on estimations made by Member States
themselves. In order to ensure that the separate account provides a better picture of the actual
budgetary situation Article 6(4)(b) of Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 1150/2000 was amended
by Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2028/2004 of 16 November 2004, This Article states now:
"Together with the final quarterly statement for a given year, Member States shall forward an estimate
of the total amount of entitlements contained in the separate account at 31 December of that year for
which recovery has become unlikely.”

Based on the estimations sent by Member States, a write-down of EUR 728.3 million has been deducted
from the item for receivables from Member States on the asset side of the balance sheet. However, this
does not mean that the Commission is waiving recovery of the amounts covered by this value
adjustment. Even where recovery looks very unlikely, if not virtually impossible, this does not
necessarily mean that the amounts in question are lost to the Community budget as traditional own
resources. This is because non-recovered entitlements are lost only if the Member State has exhausted
all the avenues it is required to pursue in order to secure recovery. Where the Member State fails to do
this, it is held financially liable and required to pay the amount into the Community budget in
accordance with Article 17(2) of Regulation No 1150/2000.

Other own resource amounts at 31 December 2005 concerned amounts due from Portugal that had not
been paid when due in December 2005.

Other receivables from Member States

Other receivables from Member States include EUR 74 million of recovery of expenses from the regions.
Included under “other” in 2004 was an amount of EUR 170 million relating to contributions due from
the new Member States to the Research Fund for Coal & Steel (see note 3.6.)

3.10.3 Sundry receivables

The main amount included here relates to advances granted under the MEDIA programme, EUR 36.5
million (2004: EUR 41.7 million). Using the prudence principle and based on the risks and uncertainty
involved, a value reduction of EUR 24.5 million {2004: EUR 28.1 million) has been applied.

Amounts due from personnel are EUR 4.2 million (2004: EUR 12.6 million.)
3.10.4 Accrued income and deferred charges

The most significant accrued income amounts represent accrued income relating to traditional own
resources (agricultural duties, sugar levies and custom duties). At 31 December 2005 these amounted to
EUR 2.3 billion compared to EUR 2 billion the previous year. Also included here is late interest income,
accrued bank interest and accrued interest on pre-financing amounts.

The main amounts under deferred charges at 31 December 2005 are anticipated payments of EUR 89.5
million (EUR 108 million in 2004) for budgetary compensation to new Member States, pre-paid office
rental of EUR 29.7 million (EUR 49 million in 2004), EUR 62.3 million paid for bilateral fisheries
agreements with third countries (EUR 61.7 million in 2004) and EUR 62.8 million pre-paid expenses
concerning the European schools.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash & cash equivalents

EUR

Unrestricted cash: 9,602,870,098.36) 5,947,447,712.18
Accounts with Treasuries & Central Banks 8,092,743,965.78 3,221,396,622.84
Current accounts 705,792,850.51| 2,102,099,904.24
Imprest accounts 61,021,076.87 71,433,147.76
Cash in hand 290,635.82 252,976.35
Transfers (cash in transit) 0.00 76,479,847.20
Short-term deposits and other cash equivalents 743,021,569.38| 475,785,210.79
Restricted cash 2,251,065,838.56| 2,129,991,326.83
Total 11,853,935,936.92 8,077,439,039.01

Unrestricted cash covers all the funds which the Communities’ keeps in its accounts in each Member
State and EFTA country (treasury or central bank), as well as in current accounts, imprest accounts,
short-term bank deposits and petty cash.

Restricted cash refers to amounts received in connection with fines issued by the Commission for which
the case is still open. These total EUR 2.25 billion and are kept in specific current accounts that are not

used for any other activities.

Cash & cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

ELIR

8,077,439,039.01

ash and cash equivalents 11,853,935,936.92
Cash and cash equivalents - Guarantee Fund (see 316,024,023.23 589,896,646.26
note 3.3.2)
Total 12,169,959,960.15 8,667,335,685.27
III. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
3.12 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
ELIR

Employee benefits

Pension Scheme 26,012,130,886.00| 8,044,529,533.33| (900,775,481.33)| 33,155,884,938.00

Pensions

At 31 December 2005, the rules concerning the Pension Scheme of European Officials (PSEQ) were
defined by the latest version of the Staff Regulations of Officials of the European Communities (in force
since 15t May 2004). The rules regarding the staff pensions are directly applicable in all Member States.
The arrangement covers various types of pensions and allowances (seniority, invalidity, survival).
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In accordance with article 83 of the Staff Regulations, the payment of the benefits provided for in the
pension scheme constitutes a charge to the Communities' budget. Member States guarantee the
payment of these benefits collectively according to the scale fixed for the financing of this expenditure.
In addition, officials contribute one third to the long-term financing of this scheme via a compulsory
contribution.

The liabilities of the PSEO were the subject of an actuarial valuation by independent experts on 31
December 2005 on the basis of the applicable rules of the statute. This evaluation covered the benefits
connected with retirement, invalidity and survival, as well as invalidity allowance. It was carried out in
accordance with the methodology of International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19). This accounting
standard requires the employer to determine his actuarial commitment on an ongoing basis, taking into
account both the promised benefits during the active lifetime of employees, and foreseeable increases in
salaries.

The actuarial valuation method used to calculate this liability is known as the projected unit credit
method. The main actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were as follows:

1. The nominal discount rate was based on the government bonds in the Euro zone in December 2005
for a duration close to that of the scheme (19 years), as an estimation of the zero coupon Euro yield
curve in December 2005 for the same duration, being 3.6%. According to IAS 19, the inflation rate
must be an expected inflation rate over the duration of the scheme - it was thus based on
prospective values as expressed by index-linked bonds on the European financial markets. The
expected long-term inflation rate was 2.1% and so the used real discount rate was 1.5%.

2. The "EU-2004 Life table" was made on the basis of the national tables of the officials' countries of
origin, and was corrected to take account of actual observed mortality rates among staff.

3. The "EU-2004 Invalidity table" was based on the one used by the Co-ordinated Organisations
(OECD, NATQ, ESA, etc) and corrected with the observation of the population of EC officials.

4. The general salary growth (GSG), being equal to the general pension revaluation, was based on
revaluation statistics of salaries and pensions of the period 1993-2005, being equal to 0.3%. The
individual salary progression (ISP) beyond the rate of the GSG was estimated on the basis of the
new career structure (promotion rates specified in annex I of the Staff Regulations) and its
transitional measures (section 1 of annex XIII of the Staff Regulations) - it varies with the status, the
age and the grade and step of the person,

5. The matrimonially coefficients for active officials at the time of their departure on retirement were
based on statistics of the population of officials. The actual marriage situation was taken for former
officials (pensioners and invalids).

6. The departure on retirement is supposed to occur at the time when the official benefits from his full
rights, taking into account the reduction for early retirement and the Barcelona Incentive for late
retirement, at the latest at 65 years,

Liabilities cover the rights previously defined for the following persons:

1. Staff in active employment at 31 December 2005 in all the Institutions and agencies included in the
PSEQ.

2. Staff in a deferred situation, i.e. who temporarily or definitively left the Institutions leaving his/her

pension rights in the PSEO.

Former officials and other servants benefiting from a retirement pension.

Former officials and other servants benefiting from an invalidity pension.

Former officials and other servants benefiting from an invalidity allowance.

The recipients of a survivor pension (widows or widowers, orphans, dependants).

o U W

The population of the PSEO at 31 December 2005 was extracted from the Eurostat database. The results
obtained within the framework of this study were compared with the estimates based on the previous
actuarial valuation on 31 December 2004.
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The principal facts are:

- The actuarial liability was valued at EUR 33.2 billion on 31 December 2005, while the previous
valuation carried out for the situation on 31 December 2004 gave an amount of EUR 26 billion.

- The 2005 service cost was valued at EUR 1.2 billion and the 2005 interest cost at EUR 1.2 billion

- The estimated actuarial loss for the year was EUR 5.5 billion

- The real discount rate changed from 1.9% to 1.5%, so if we consider furthermore the general salary
growth effect (0.2% in 2004 and 0.3% in 2005), the net discount rate decreased from 1.7% to 1.2%.

- The population of members of the pension scheme increased by 7,094 to 54,876 individuals since 31
December 2004, and it contains new categories of persons (beneficiaries of an invalidity allowance
and contractual agents as well as deferred pensioners), the new agents having a lower yearly
accrual rate for pension (1.9% instead of 2%).

The calculations of gross pensions and family allowances are based on the provisions of the Staff
Regulations.

Also included in the above amount is the liability relating to the pension obligations towards members
and former members of the Commission and Court of Auditors, as well as the judges and former
judges of the Court of Justice and the Court of First Instance. The amounts used in 2005 represent the
pension amounts paid, from the 2005 budget, to retired staff (widows, orphans, etc.) during the year.

3.13 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

Long-term provisions for risks and charges EUR

Legal cases §1,205,000.00 18,350,223.47 0.00 0.00 99,555,223.47
Nuclear site

dismantlement 831,401,306.00 0.00 (34,565,000.00) 87,010,574.00 883,846,880.00
Financial provisions 100,358,155.85 46,601,400.50 (36,517,733.21}) 2,605,078.86 113,046,902.00
Other 55,649.18 338,280.06 0.00 0.00 393,929.24
Total 1,013,020,111.03 65,289,904.03 (71,082,733.21) 89,015,652.86 1,096,842,934.71

Legal cases

This is the estimate of amounts that are likely to be paid after 2006 in relation to a number of ongoing
legal cases. The largest (EUR 60 million) concemns the estimate of amounts that will probably have to be
paid out for 18 court cases pending at 31 December 2005 in relation to the financial corrections for
EAGGF Guarantee expenditure. A further EUR 37.2 million is provided for 5 other court cases
concerning agricultural expenditure

Decommissioning of JRC nuclear facilities

In 2002 a consorium of independent experts conducted a study into the estimated costs of the
decommissioning of the JRC nuclear facilities and waste management programme. Their estimate of
EUR 1,145 million (including EUR 76 million as an estimate of the cost required for the "green field"
option, i.e. total destruction of all the buildings) is taken as the basis for the provision to be included in
the accounts. To fully apply the Communities” accounting rules, this provision is indexed for inflation
(at a rate of 2.5%) and then discounted to its net present value (using the Euro zero-coupon swap
curve). At 31 December 2005, this resulted in an amount for the provision of EUR 1,016.4 million, less
the costs incurred to date of EUR 81.5 million, giving EUR 934.9 million split between amounts
expected to be used in 2006 (EUR 51 million) and afterwards (EUR 883.9 million.)
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In view of the estimated duration of this programme (around 30 years), it should be pointed out that
there is some uncertainty about this estimate, and the final cost could be different from the amounts
currently entered.

Financial provisions

Under the SME Guarantee Facility 1998 implemented as part of the European Union’s Growth and
Employment Initiative and the SME Guarantee Facility 2001 implemented under the Multi-annual
Programme for enterprise and entrepreneurship (MAP), the European Investment Fund (EIF) is
empowered to issue guarantees in its own name but on behalf of and at the risk of the Communities.

The financial risk linked to the drawn and undrawn guarantees is capped as follows:

- Under the SME Guarantee Facility 1998, the guarantee cap amount is a Euro fixed amount calculated
by the EIF and approved by the Commission for each guarantee portfolio. However, as the inclusion
period for this facility is over, the financial risk provision is not based on the guarantee cap amount but
rather on the contracted percentage of actual utilisation of guarantees issued to financial intermediaries,
subsequently reduced by the payment demands made by these intermediaries, net of any loss
recoveries. The net amount then obtained represents the payment obligation of the facility.

- Under the SME Guarantee Facility 2001, the guarantee cap amount is the pre-agreed payment
obligation to financial intermediaries recorded upon the signature of a new guarantee agreement and
subsequently reduced by the payment demands made by financial intermediaries, net of any loss
recoveries. The pre-agreed payment obligation covers a small part of the total guarantee volume,
technical support for the Micro-credit window (capped to a maximum of EUR 100,000 per
intermediary) and marketing costs and collection of information costs (respectively capped to
EUR 2,500 and EUR 5,000 per intermediary).

As at the balance sheet date, financial provisions correspond therefore for both facilities to the payment
obligations towards to financial intermediaries minus the net payment demands made up that date.
Due to the time value of money, long-term financial provisions are discounted to their net present
value (using the Euro zero-coupon swap curve).

The financial provisions are annually adjusted in view of any variation of the utilisation of guarantees
or any change in the net payment demands made by the financial intermediaries. The total increase in
financial provisions (long-term and short-term) in 2005 is EUR 27.4 million, divided into the effective

additional provision of EUR 51.7 million less the payments made for the guarantee calls amounting to
EUR 27.9 million, and an increase of provision due to the effect of time of EUR 3.6 million.

3.14 FINANCIAL LTABILITIES

3.14.1 Borrowings
This heading includes borrowings due by the European Communities maturing in over one year.

The detailed movements in borrowings during 2005 are as follows:
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Borrowings

EUR

MFA 1,220,589,960.38] 108,750,000.00| (242,750,000.00) 0.00 (331,548.81)i1,086,258,411.57
After 1,199,743,797.33| 108,750,000.00| (236,525,000.00) 0.00 (288,114.36)]1,071,680,682 .97
elimination

EURATOM 172,412,848.97| 215,000,000.00 0,00 0.00 1,317,018.07| 388,729,867.04
ECSCin

liquidation 448,826,114.00 0.00 {(2,223,144.00y 21,085,001.00 {85,520.00)[ 467,602,451.00
Total 1,841,828,923.35| 323,750,000.00| (244,973,144.00)| 21,085,001.00 899,949,26(1,942,590,729.61
Aftet . 1,820,982,760.30| 323,750,000.00| (238,748,144.00); 21,085,001.00 943,383.71(1,928,013,001.01
elimination

5

lit of borrowin

s between Ion

g-term & short-term

EUR

Borrowings

MFA 23,122,422.79 1,063,135,988.78 1,086,258,411.57
After elimination 22,018,193.71 1,049,662,489.26 1,071,680,682.97
EURATOM 0.00 388,729,867.04 388,729,867.04
ECSC in liquidation 0.00 467,602,451.00 467,602,451.00
Total before elimination 23,122,422.79 1,919,468,306.82 1,942,590,729.61
Total after elimination 22,018,193.71 1,905,994,807.30 1,928,013,001.01

Borrowings include debts evidenced by certificates amounting (after elimination) to EUR 1,281.4
million (2004: EUR 1,223.8 million). The changes in carrying amount correspond to the change in
accrued interests plus, in the case of ECSC in liquidation’s borrowings, the amortisation of the year of
any material transaction costs incurred at inception, calculated according to the effective interest rate

method.

The effective interest rates (expressed as a range of interest rates) were as follows:

Effective interest rates on borrowings

Macro Financial Assistance (MFA)

2.039% - 4.54%

2.075% - 4.54%

Euratom

ECSC in liquidation

2.144% - 5.6775%
1.625%-11.875% (*)

2.161% -

5.6775%

1.6875%- 11.875% (*)

(*) higher bound value relates to the fixed rate borrowing covered by the interest rate swap (see note 3.3.3.2)

3.14.2 Held for trading liabilities

See held for trading assets, note 3.3.3.2 above, for more details.

Held for trading liabilities

EUR

ECSC in iqui ation sa )
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3.15 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

This item covers leasing liabilities due in greater than one year (see note 3.2 above) and payments still
to be made on the part of the EBRD capital subscribed by the Commission which has been called in.

Included under “Other” are amounts of EUR 19.9 million and EUR 7 million relating to the pension
fund for local agents working in the delegations and the unemployment fund for temporary agents
respectively. An amount of EUR 42.3 million (2004: EUR 62 million) is also included here relating to
reimbursements of investment costs to be made by the Parliament concerning its building in Brussels.

Other long-term liabilities EUR

Finance Leasing debts 772,858,660.07|  1,736,441,055,04
EBRD subscriptions 9,464,084.64 17,286,307.05
Other 70,327,191.85 89,824,834.69
Total 1,852,649,936.56|  1,843,552,196.78

IV. CURRENT LIABILITIES

3.16 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

This heading includes the pertion of provisions which fall due for payment in less than one year's time.

Short-term provisions for risks and charges EUR

Legal cases 34,300.00 | 16,132,973.27 {20,798.39) (13,501.61) 0.00 | 16,132,97327
Nuclear site 38,294,093.00 | 34,565,000.00 0.00 |(21,811,237.00) 0.00 | 51,047,856.00
dismantlement

Emergency 41,923,055.00 | 15417,743.00 | (3,444,839.76) |(18,604,903.26) 0.00 | 35291,054.98
Veterinary Fund

Financial provisions | 138,553,202.62 | 41,604,725.38 0.00 [(27,899,063.00) 1,031,992.00 [ 153,290,857.00
Other 21,435,602.98 8,652,113.80 | (3,839,873.04) | (6,569,587.36) 0.00 | 19,678,256.38
Total 240,240,253.60 |116,372,555.45 | (7,305,511.19) |(74,898,292.23) 1,031,992.00 | 275,440,997.63

* Includes amounts transferred from long-term provisions {(see note 3.13 above)
Legal cases

This is the estimate of amounts that are likely to be paid in 2006 in relation to a number of ongoing legal
cases, as well as the associated legal costs.

Decommissioning of JRC nuclear facilities - see note 3.13
Emergency Veterinary Fund provision

This provision concerns the estimates of the Communities' contributions to various Member States
under the Emergency Veterinary Fund for certain animal disease outbreaks, totalling EUR 35.3 million
(2004: EUR 41.9 million). Amounts of EUR 5.5 million already agreed to be paid are included as a debt
due to Member States.
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Financial provisions - see note 3.13
Other provisions

These relate to provisions for untaken holidays of staff in various agencies.

3.17 SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This heading includes borrowings and other financial liabilities with remaining final maturities less
than 12 months after the balance sheet date (see text and tables above, note 3.14).

3.18 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable EUR

Long-term liabilities due in less than one year 51,333980.13|  58,576,673.54
Current payables 15,220,283,490.91| 9,411,614,657.02
Sundry payables 108,665,542.69 224,816,354.27
Accrued charges and deferred income 67,147,704,569.99| 64,546,197,089.81
Total 82,527,987,583.72] 74,241,204,774.64

3.18.1 Long-term liabilities falling due in less than one year

This heading includes amounts which fall due for payment in less than one year's time, primarily long-
term leasing debts falling due within the year (EUR 29.9 million). It also includes EUR 21.4 million
(2004: EUR 21 million) relating to reimbursements of investment cost to be made by the Parliament
concerning its building in Brussels.

Long-term liabilities falling due in less than one year EUR

Finance Leasing debts 29,866,390.13 36,764,256.76
Other 21,467,590.00 21,812,416.78
Total 51,333,980.13 58,576,673.54

3.18.2 Current payables

Current payables EUR

Member States ,166,489.79 ,856,661.89
EFTA 8,990,813.33 21,938,674.64
Staff 820,194.62 164,540.84
Third States 174,963,659.84 171,147,130.45
Suppliers and other 1,350,211,214.82 1,534,230,533.57
Eligibility to be checked (1,649,868,881.49) (1,367,722,884.37)
Total 15,220,283,490.91 9,411,614,657.02
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Current payables concern mainly cost statements received by the Communities under the framework of
the grant activities. They are credited for the amount being claimed from the moment the demand is
received. If the counterpart is a Member State, they are classified as such. It is the same procedure for
invoices and credit notes received under procurement activities.

Giving out grants under the different policy areas is the core activity of the European Communities.
The normal lifecycle of grant implementation can be summarised as follows: a financing decision is
made, followed by a budgetary commitment (reservation of funds in the budget), followed by the
signature of the contract between the Communities and the beneficiary (although the sequence may
vary for example in the case of the structural funds.) A pre-financing payment can then be made,
intended to provide the beneficiary with a float.

The next (interim or final) payments may be repeated and are intended to reimburse expenditure
incurred by the beneficiary on the basis of a statement of expenditure when the action is in progress. It
may clear the outstanding pre-financing amount in whole or in part.

Cost statements are sent by the beneficiaries, which the Communities have to analyse, looking at the
eligibility of the expenses, together with a possible clearing of the pre-financing amount. The rhythm of
these cost claims sent during the year is variable depending on the type of action being funded and the
contractual conditions, and they are not necessarily received at year end. Cost statements received are
registered immediately as a current payable with “Eligibility to be checked” the counterpart entry.

Eligibility criteria are defined in the basic act, in the calls for proposal, in other information documents
for grant beneficiaries and/or in the contractual clauses of the grant agreements. After analysis, the
eligible expenses are taken into charges and the beneficiary is informed about any non eligible
amounts. “Eligibility to be checked” amounts thus represent received cost claims for which the
eligibility has not yet been checked and therefore where the event giving rise to the expense being
realised has not yet been reached.

The cost claims concerned have been taken into account for the year-end cut off procedures (see note
3.18.4 below). Following these cut off entries, estimated eligible amounts have therefore been recorded
as accrued charges, while the non-eligible parts remain open on the “eligibility to be checked” accounts.
In order not to overestimate assets and liabilities, it has been decided to present the net amount to be
paid under the current liabilities.

Member States

The primary amounts here related to unpaid cost claims for structural fund actions and also EUR 3.8
billion due back to Member States following the rectifying budget (8) made at the end of 2005.

EFTA countries

Amounts owed to EFTA countries include the budget outturn figures of the current year and the
previous years but primarily the balance on the EFTA current account.

Staff

This heading covers the unemployment fund for temporary staff at the Commission and the welfare
fund for Commission local staff in non-member countries.

Suppliers and other

As well as amounts relating to grant activities, also included under this heading are amounts owed
following procurement activities. This heading also covers amounts payable to several public bodies
(universities, institutes, chambers of commerce, United Nations, EIB, etc.) and non-consolidated
entities, including the EDF.
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Eligibility to be checked

Following the year-end accruals, EUR 1,650 million remains open as “eligibility to be checked” on cost
claims in the framework of the grant activity. The most important amounts concern DG REGIO (EUR
801 million), DG EMPL (EUR 465 million), DG AGRI (EUR 252 million) and DG EAC (EUR 51 million).

The remaining balance of “eligibility to be checked” (EUR 81 million) concerns invoices received and
requests for reimbursement, mainly from procurement activities, for which the invoice has still to be
checked with the delivered goods and services and requests for pre-financing.

3.18.3 Sundry payables

An amount of EUR 5.5 million (2004: EUR 126.4 million) to be paid to various Member States included
under this heading relates to claims made for reimbursement of certain costs in connection with certain
disease eradication costs and is also included under this heading.

Also included are co-financing amounts of EUR 30.2 million (2004: EUR 24.6 million) received from
Member States for their participation in some development projects. Corresponding amounts are also

included under cash and cash equivalents.

3.184 Accrued charges and deferred income

Accrued charges & deferred income EUR

ccrued charges ’ , ] 24.37
Deferred income 79,167 97298 74,393,506.91
Other 383,249,003.89 266,769,258.53
Total 67,147,704,569.99 64,546,197,089.81

The most significant accrued charges amounts represent accrued charges relating to EAGGF-Guarantee
expenditure. At 31 December 2005 these amounted to EUR 49.1 billion compared to EUR 47.6 billion
the previous year: EUR 25.1 billion (EUR 26.3 billion in 2004) cover incurred expenses between 16
October and 31 December 2005 which are declared by Member States beyond the time frame necessary
for the preparation of the financial statements, EUR 23.5 billion (EUR 21.2 billion in 2004) cover market
measures including direct aid (this consist of entitlements incurred in 2005 with financial consequences
in 2006) and rural development (this consist of eligible expenditure incurred by operators or the
payment authorities until the 31 December 2005, for which no payment request was yet sent to the
Commission), EUR 0.5 billion (EUR 0.1 billion in 2004) represents stock intervention.

Another significant amount represents accrued charges for structural funds: at 31 December 2005 EUR
7.9 billion for the FEDER 2000-2006, ISPA, innovative actions (EUR 6.3 billion in 2004), EUR 5.1 billion
for FSE (EUR 5.1 billion in 2004). The remaining amounts of EUR 4,5 billion (EUR 5.2 in 2004) covers
accrued charges for other politics, the most significant of which is the Research area with +/- EUR 1.5
billion in 2005 and 2004,

More details on the year-end cut-off process are given in note E 2.3.9.
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V. NET ASSETS

3.19 RESERVES

Reserves EUR

value reserve 81,362,536.78 .

Other reserves: 2,727,247,043.21 2,479,074,943.38
Guarantee fund 1,231,211,256.30 1,086,129,313.44
Revaluation reserve 57,124,663.00 57,124,663.00
Borrowing and lending activities 1,438,911,123.91 1,335,820,966.94

Total 2,808,609,579.99 2,567,532,141.28

3.19.1 Fair value reserve

In accordance with the new accounting rules, the adjustment to fair value of available-for-sale assets is
accounted for through the fair value reserve.

3.19.2 Other reserves
Guarantee fund

See also note 3.3.2 concerning the operation of the Guarantee Fund. This reserve reflects the 9% target
amount of the outstanding amounts guaranteed by the Fund that is required to be kept as assets. As
stated earlier, any surplus of the assets of the Fund above this 9% reserve amount is repaid to the
budget.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve comprises the revaluations of tangible and intangible fixed assets. The balance
at the year-end of EUR 57.1 million relates to a revaluation of Commission land and buildings, which
had already occurred before the transition to the new accounting rules.

Borrowing and lending activities reserve

These amounts comprise the reserves relating to the Communities’ borrowing and lending activities.
The main amount relates to the ECSC in liquidation reserves (EUR 1.43 billion, 2004: EUR 1.34 billion.)

3.20 AMOUNTS TO BE CALLED FROM MEMBER STATES

This amount represents the excess expenses already incurred by the Communities up to 31 December
2005 that must be funded by future budgets. Tt arises through the application of accrual accounting
methods, done for the first time in 2005, which are different to the rules of cash accounting used to
prepare the budgetary accounts. Accrual accounting recognises expenses in the period to which they
relate regardless of when the payment is actually made, whereas cash accounting records a transaction
only when a payment is made. Based on these new rules, the Communities must evaluate and
recognise in its financial statements the expenditure to be financed by the general budget but which has
not yet been declared by the year-end. Thus very many expenses are recognised under accrual
accounting rules in the year N although they may be actually paid in year N+1 using the budget of year
N+1. Nevertheless, the Communities only call up resources from the Member States when it needs
money to pay an amount due, so as to give Member States maximum flexibility in managing their
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public finances. This inclusion in the accounts of the Communities liabilities coupled with the fact that
the corresponding amounts are only recognised in future budgets results in liabilities greatly exceeding
assets at the year-end.

The existence of negative net assets simply highlights the difference between cash-based accounting
and accrual accounting for an entity which is financed according to its cash-flow needs. It does not take
into account the obligation of Member States to provide the necessary resources in the future to pay for
the expenditure incurred when it falls due. It should be remembered that the Communities cannot
make a payment unless it was foreseen in the budget and all budgeted expenditure is covered by
budgeted revenue from the Member States.

The most significant amounts to be highlighted are the EAGGF Guarantee activities. The amount of
payments due to the Member States for the period 16 October to 31 December 2004 was EUR 26.3
billion. This is an expense under accrual accounting rules in the year 2004 and so is recognised under
accrued charges as such. However, this amount is covered by the 2005 budget and was actually paid
out in January and February 2005, being recorded in the budgetary accounts as a payment for 2005 (no
entry in the budgetary accounts had been made for these amounts in the 2004 year.)

Also impacting this figure is the amount of the pension obligation of the Communities towards its staff
- at 31 December 2004 this amount was estimated to be EUR 26.0 billion. This amount will not all be
paid out in one year, rather the pension payments are continuously paid to staff when they become
eligible every month. These payments are thus covered by the (future) budget of the year in which they
are paid.

The majority of the amounts are in fact paid by the Member States in less than 12 months after the end
of the financial year in question as part of the budget of the following year. Thus looking at the opening
amounts to be called from Members States at 31 December 2004 of EUR 54.2, the following amounts
were received during 2005:

- EUR 30 billion of the amounts received from Member States in the period January 2005 to March
2005 were used to pay the EAGGF Guarantee amounts that were accrued for as liabilities at year-
end.

- A further EUR 18.5 billion was received during 2005 and paid out under the EAGGF Guarantee,
of which all but EUR 1 billion had also been accrued at 31 December 2004.

- EUR 900 million was paid out by the Communities as pension costs during 2005, and thus
funded by the Member States under the 2005 budget. The balance of the pension liability
recognised at 31 December 2004 (EUR 25.1 billion} will be funded by Member States as part of the
budgets of 2006 and later.

The split of the amounts to be called from Members States in the future is as follows:

ELIR nullions

Amounts to be called in future years from Member States:
Accumulated from previous years 57,140,886,586.80 58,358,647,440.20
Economic outturn for the year*® 7,812,464,365.47 (4,194,018,305.10)
Total amounts to be called from Members States 64,953,350,952.27 54,164,629,135.10
* The economic outturn for 2004 was based on the accounting rules then in place.
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This year due to the change in accounting policies following the move to accrual accounting, all the
necessary changes to the opening balance sheet of 2005 were made to the (then) accumulated surplus
carried forward from 2004.

It should also be noted that the above has no effect on the budget outturn - budget revenue should
always equal budget expenditure since any excess of revenue is returned to the Member States.
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It should be noted that since 2005 is the first year of preparing the annual accounts under the new
accrual accounting rules, and thus the first year that an Economic Qutturn Account is prepared, it was
decided that the comparative figures for 2004 would not be presented. This is because such figures
were not required for the 2004 annual accounts since they were prepared under different accounting
rules, Comparative figures for the economic outturn account will be given from 2006 onwards.

41 OPERATING REVENUES

Operating revenue of the European Communities can be divided into two main categories: own
resources and other revenue. The main bulk of expenditure is financed by own resources, other
revenue represents only a minor part of total financing.

OPERATING REVENUES

EUR

101,143,885,139.05
GNI1 resources 70,861,050,698.58
VAT resources 16,018,121,497 .86
Traditional own resources:
Agricultural duties 1,310,659,214.95
Custom duties 12,252,130,814.06
Sugar levies 701,922,913.60
BUDGETARY ADJUSTMENTS 4.1.2 2,606,103,308.82
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THIRD COUNTRIES (INCLUDING EFTA 214,140,937.98
COUNTRIES)
FINES 719,616,062.54
RECOVERY OF EXPENSES 4.1.3 1,385,693,507.89
Direct centralised management 59,430,895.71
Indlirect centralised management 4(,947,197.39
Decentralised management (4,251,306.90)
Shared management 1,289,744,473.46
Joint management (177,751.77)
REVENUE FROM ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS 414 895,083,199.67
Staff 779,205,112.48
Fixed assets related revenues 42,427 876.97
Other administrative revenues 73,450,210.22
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 4.1.5 925,576,809.61
Adjustments/ provisions 3,507,474.00
Exchange gains 413,875,369.41
Other 508,193,966.20
TOTAL 107,890,098,965.56

41.1 Ownresource revenue

There are three categories of own resources: traditional own resources, the VAT resource and the GNI
resource. Traditional own resources, in turn, comprise agricultural duties, sugar levies and customs
duties. A correction mechanism in respect of budgetary imbalances (UK Rebate) is also part of the own
resources system. Member States retain, by way of collection costs, 25% of traditional own resources.

VAT own resources derive from the application of a uniform rate, for all countries, to the harmonised
VAT base, a base which is capped at 50% of GNI for all Member States. The GNI resource is a variable
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resource intended to supply the revenue required, in any given year, to cover expenditure exceeding
the amount collected from traditional own resources, VAT resources and miscellaneous revenue. The
revenue derives from the application of a uniform rate to the aggregate GNI of all the Member States.

It should be noted that corrections made in 2005 relating to the period 1995-2004 for GNI resources
were EUR 2,049 million. Similarly, corrections relating to the period 1991-2004 for VAT Resources were
EUR 399 million. These corrections have the same impact in the budgetary accounts.

41.2 Budgetary adjustments

The budgetary adjustments include the budget surplus from 2004 (EUR 2.7 billion) which is refunded
to Member States by deduction of the amounts they have to pay in the following year - thus it is a
revenue for 2005. The UK rebate (EUR 130.6 million) is also deducted here.

4.1.3 Recovery of expenses

Future corrections can and are made to amounts paid out by the European Communities. Thes e
corrections are entered in the accounts if the amount of eligible expenditure, as defined by ex-post
controls or audits, is lower than the amount of cumulated eligible expenditure initially recognised by
the Communities.

For normal grant activity, a recovery order has in this case to be addressed to the beneficiary of the
grant. If this is done before final payment of the grant, it results in the entering of a receivable from the
recipient with counterpart a reduction in the charge of the year. However, if the recovery order is only
issued after the final payment, it results in a receivable on the recipient with the counterpart being
income in the economic outturn account of the year under the heading “recovery of expenses”.

In the framework of the Common Agricultural Policy, amounts accounted for as income of the year
under this heading concern negative expenditures, like receipts from frauds and irregularities, milk
levies in order to guarantee the equilibrium in the markets, and conformity clearances following audits
that adjust the eligible charges. In 2005, an amount of EUR 46.6 million concerning EAGGF was
accounted for as a correction under the 2004 clearance of accounts process. Three further conformity
decisions were also taken during 2005, with a financial impact of EUR 520.5 million. In 2005 also, EUR
447.0 million concern milk levies and EUR 107.3 million fraud and irregularities.

At 31 December 2005 the amount of EAGGF Guarantee amounts subject to future corrections total EUR
1.15 billion. This amount is treated as a contingent asset in the off-balance sheet.

Other formal corrections were made during 2005 for amounts paid out previously, which are now
being recovered (these corrections have the same impact in the budgetary accounts):

- Under the European Social Fund, financial corrections were made in 2005 relating to the period
1994-1999 totalling EUR 5.3 million and for the period 2000-2006 totalling EUR 6.3 million.

- Under the European Regional Development Fund, corrections were made in 2005 relating to the
period 1994-1999 totalling EUR 0.5 million and for the period 2000-2006 totalling EUR 100 million
(another EUR 400 million is to be issued in 2006-2008).

- Concerning the Cohesion Fund the amount of financial corrections made in 2005 was EUR 119.4
million.

There are other types of corrections which are not recorded for example, because of the possibility
given to the Member States to offset the ineligible expenditure by other expenditure.

Accrued income because of ineligibility of expenses is estimated at year end and accounted for under
this heading. The negative amounts (under decentralised and joint management) concern reversal of
opening balance sheet cut off entries. Ineligible amounts had been considered as accrued income, but
the amount had been overestimated by two DGs.
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414 Revenue from administrative operations
Revenue from staff is made up primarily of two amounts - pension contributions and taxes on income.
4.1.5 Other operating revenues

The largest amount (EUR 276.2 million) relates to amounts received from accession countries. Other
amounts include the write back of amounts previously written off receivables.

Exchange gains, except on financial activities dealt with in note 4.5 below, are also included under this
heading. These arise on the everyday activities and related transactions made in currencies other than
the Euro, as well as the year-end revaluation required to prepare the accounts - they are both realised
and unrealised.

4.2  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

These are administrative expenses incurred as part of the activities of the Communities. Costs incurred
here include: staff costs, costs relating to fixed assets (such as depreciation).

Land and building costs (EUR 349 million) which include rental charges and operating lease expenses
are included under “other administrative expenses”, as well as publication costs and internal
procurement of goods.

4.3  OPERATING EXPENSES

The European Communities’ operating expenditure covers the various headings of the financial
perspective and takes different forms, depending on how the money is paid out and managed. In
accordance with the Financial Regulation, the Communities implement the general budget using the
following methods:

Direct centralised management: this is where the implementation of the budget is done directly by the
responsible Communities” Institution or body.

Indirect centralised management: this refers to cases where the Communities entrust the task of
managing a portion of the budget to a Communities or Member State body.

Decentralised management: these are the cases where the Communities delegate certain tasks for
implementation of the budget to third countries.

Shared management: similarly under this method of management the Communities delegate certain
tasks for implementation of the budget to Member States.

Joint management: under this method, the Communities entrust certain implementation tasks to an
international organisation.

The majority of the expenditure (EUR 86.9 billion) falls under the heading “Shared Management”

involving the delegation of tasks to Member States, covering such areas as EAGGF spending and
Structural Actions.
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44  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Movements on provisions for risks and charges are shown under this heading. In accordance with the
Communities” accounting rules, provisions recognised on the balance sheet need to be re-examined at
least at each year-end and adjusted where necessary so as to reflect their current underlying situation.
Also included are write-downs made on amounts receivable.

Exchange losses, except on financial activities dealt with in note 4.6 below, occur on the everyday
activities and related transactions made in currencies other than the Euro, as well as the year-end
revaluation required to prepare the accounts - they are both realised and unrealised.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

EUR
Adjustments/provisions 138,579,083.80
Exchange losses 375,983,460.65
Other 417,090,475.73
TOTAL 931,653,020.18

4.5 FINANCIAL OPERATIONS REVENUE

The Communities’ financial income consists mainly of interest income derived from loans, either
granted from the general budget or from borrowed funds, as well as from debt securities and derivative
instruments. Interest is also earned on amounts held in bank accounts and short-term bank deposits.

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS REVENUE

ELIR

DIVIDEND INCOME 7,319,379.77
From Venture Capital Funds 7,319,379.77
INTEREST INCOME 343,282,568.96
On loans 92,0060,982.27
On cash & cash equivalents 78,350,741.02
Other 172,870,845.67
OTHER FINANCIAL INCOME 38,655,069.39
Realised gain on sale of financial assets 5,127,264 81
Reversal of impairment losses on financial assets 3,550,976.22
Other 29,976,828.36
PRESENT VALUE ADJUSTMENT 4,573,808.00
EXCHANGE GAINS 5,257,702.60
TOTAL 399,088,528.72

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

The main financial expense incurred by the European Communities consists of interest on financial
lease contracts, as well as on borrowings taken out to fund lending activities and derivative
instruments. In addition to losses on the sale and the write down in the value of financial assets, other
financial expenses also include the adjustments made to financial provisions and the management fees
paid to the fiduciaries.
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FINANCIAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

EUR

INTEREST EXPENSES 215,368,551.00
On borrowings 72,644,656.26
Other 142,723,894.74
OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES 151,709,601.37
Realised loss on sale of financial assets 2,246,264.94
Impairment losses on financial assets 1,575,224.77
Other 147,888,111.66
EXCHANGE LOSSES 1,571,986.82
TOTAL 368,650,139.19

47  SHARE OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES

In accordance with the equity method of accounting, the Communities includes in its economic outturn
account its share of the net surplus of its associate, EIF, and its share of the net deficit of its joint
venture, Galileo (see also note E 3.3.1}.
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It should be noted that since 2005 is the first year of preparing the annual accounts under the new
accrual accounting rules, and thus the first year that a cashflow table is prepared, it was decided that
the comparative figures for 2004 would not be presented. This is because such figures were not
required for the 2004 annual accounts since they were prepared under different accounting rules.
Comparative figures for the cashflow table will be given from 2006 onwards.

51  PURPOSE AND PREPARATION OF THE CASHFLOW TABLE

Cash flow information is used to provide a basis for assessing the ability of the Communities to
generate cash and cash equivalents, and its needs to utilise those cash flows.

The cash flow table is prepared using the indirect method. This means that the net surplus or deficit for
the financial year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of revenue or expense
associated with investing cash flows.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are recorded in the European Communities’
reporting currency (euro), by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the
euro and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

The cash flow table shown above reports cash flows during the period classified by operating, investing
and financing activities. The cash flows associated with extraordinary items, if any, are classified as
arising from operating, investing or financing activities as appropriate, and separately disclosed.

5.2 OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating activities are the activities of the Communities that are not investing activities. These are the
majority of the activities performed. Loans granted to beneficiaries (and the related borrowings, when
applicable) are not considered as investing (or financing) activities as they are part of the general
objectives and thus daily operations of the Communities. Operating activities also include investments
such as EIF, Galileo, EBRD and venture capital funds. Indeed, the objective of these activities is to
participate in the achievement of policy targeted outcomes,

5.3 INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of intangible and tangible fixed assets and of other
non-operating investments which are not included in cash equivalents. Investing activities do not
include loans granted to beneficiaries. The objective is to show the real investments made by the
Communities.

It should be noted that EUR 2.25 billion of cash and cash equivalent balances held by the Communities
are not available for use by the Communities, This is the cash received as payment of fines levied,
where the other party is appealing the imposition of the fine. These amounts are clearly disclosed as
“restricted cash” under note 3.11 above.
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CONTINGENT ASSETS

Guarantees received
Guarantees received in respect of pre-financing

|

i ’

1,138,136,716.33

EUR

867,545,633.50
1,261,653,669.13

Guarantees received in respect of fines' cases pending 6.1.2 1.465,706,342.00 1,165,874,001.00
Other guarantees received 613 748,254,536.80 440,017,963.37
Borrowing agreements signed 6.2 0.00 0.00
Contingent assets relating to cases of fraud & irregularities 6.3 1,244,918,719.00 1,102,621,000.00
concerning structural actions

Other contingent assets 6.4 1,234,642,838.97 905,824.00
Total Contingent Assets 5,831,659,153.10 3,971,072,457.50
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS FOR FUTURE FUNDING

Guarantees given

15,788,387,107.69

EUR

14,557,201,106.61

Guarantees given for EIB loans 6.5.1 15,055,116,636.77 13,899,797,966.00
Guarantees signed by the EIF 6.5.2 732,272,742.00 656,517,527 .00
Other guarantees given 997,728.92 885,613.61
EAGGF Guarantee 6.6 465,360,931.04 562,604,294.00
Contingent liabilittes connected with the clearance of 6.6.1 465,360,931.04 554,096,294.00
the EAGGF Guarantee accounts pending judgement by

the Court of Justice

Contingent liabilities relating to the judgements by the 6.6.2 0.00 8,508,000.00
Court of Justice pending enforcement

Fines - Appeals to the Court of Justice 6.7 4,427,429,022.00 3,837,913,801.00
Amounts relating to legal cases and other disputes 6.8 2,490,921,822.28 2,430,473,105.00
Other contingent liabilities 6.9 709,055,454.83 558,822,340.00
Total Contingent Liabilities 23,881,154,337.84 21,947,014,646.61

wh commitiments

331,766,142.56

485,693,578.78

Commitments against appropriations not yet consumed |  6.11 85,824,110,196.66 83,945,009,118.97
Legal Commitments for which budget commitments 6.12 48,183,934,608.94 89,485,289,562.47
have not yet been made
Structural operations (aid planned but not committed 6.12.1 39,014,608,434.94 75,999,232,173 47
for the period 2000-2006)
Cohesion fund 6.12.2 6,000,664,296.00 8,193,874,771.00
ISPA 6.12.3 514,617,181.00 630,464,832.00
TRDI 6.12.4 2,096,000,000.00 4,027,000,000.00
Protocols with Mediterranean Countries 6.12.5 259,258,236.00 253,739,892.00
External relations 6.12.6

KEDO 57,236,958.00 58,025,519.00

UNWRA 0.00 63,669,375.00
Fisheries agreements 6.12.7 241,549,500.00 259,283,000.00
Contributions to related organisations 6.13 946,500,000.00 1,022,500,000.600
Uncalled Share capital EBRD 6.13.1 442,500,000.00 442,500,000.00
Uncalled Share capital EIF 6.13.2 480,000,000.00 480,000,000.00
Uncalled Share capital Galileo programme (adjusted) 6.13.3 24,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
Operating lease commitments 6.14 1,415,393,523.34 1,182,189,017.45
Total Commitments for future funding 139,701,704,471.50 176,120,681,277.67

All contingent liabilities and commitments would be financed, should they fall due, by the Conununities' budget in the years to come.

The Commnunities' budget is financed by the Member States,

100




Final Annual Accounts of the European Communities 2005

CONTINGENT ASSETS

6.1 GUARANTEES RECEIVED

6.1.1 Guarantees received in respect of pre-financing

These are guarantees that the European Communities request from beneficiaries when paying out
advance payments (pre-financing). In some cases as required by the Financial Regulation, guarantees
can be required in order for beneficiaries to receive pre-financing. The object of the guarantee is
therefore to secure the pre-financing. The generating event is linked to the existence of the pre-
financing. Here the guarantee’s generating event is the pre-financing payment. At 31 December 2005
the full (or facial) amount of those guarantees amounts EUR 1.14 billion,

In some cases, the associated pre-financing has been partially cleared via an interim payment. The
estimated value of the related open pre-financing amounts at 31 December 2005 is about FEUR 0.73
billion,

6.1.2 Guarantees received in respect of fines' cases pending

These are guarantees received from the recipient of a Communities’ fine who wishes to appeal this fine.
A bank guarantee can be given for the amount {(and interest) in question instead of making a
provisional payment.

6.1.3 Other guarantees received
The types of guarantees included under this heading are:

Other guarantees received EUR

Euratom loans: guarantees by third countries 385,000,000.00 170,000,000.00
Performance guarantees 253,793,322.70 166,209,567.12
Guarantees received as part of tenders 4,690,212.61 1,567,083.84
Guarantees for payment delays 3,759,388.45 6,348,343.37
Other 101,011,613.04 95,862,969.04
Total 748,254,536.80 440,017,963.37

The Commission has received guarantees from third-party guarantors in respect of loans granted
through Euratom. The Commission has not received third-party guarantees for loans granted under the
financial assistance (MFA) scheme. However, these loans are guaranteed by the Guarantee Fund.

Performance guarantees are sometimes requested to ensure that beneficiaries of Communities funding
meet the obligations of their contracts with the Communities. Included here is a bank guarantee of EUR
127.8 million (2004: EUR 60.8 million) received by the Council relating to the advance payments given
for the construction of the LEX building,.

Other guarantees include EUR 93.4 million at 31 December 2005 {(2004: EUR 84.3 million) concerning
guarantees received by the ECSC in liquidation for loans granted (as specified in the related contracts.)

6.2 BORROWING AGREEMENTS SIGNED

These are borrowing agreements entered into by the Communities but not yet drawn down before the
year-end - there were none at 31 December 2005 or 2004.
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FRAUD AND IRREGULARITIES - STRUCTURAL ACTIONS

The table below is based on the formal reports submitted by the Member States in accordance with
Commission Regulation No 1681/94, with amounts broken down by Member State. The tables show
the difference between amounts identified by the Member States as still to be recovered (calculated on
the basis of established entitlements or estimates) and amounts already recovered or declared
irrecoverable.

Contingent assets: fraud & irregularities cases EUR'000

Belgium 14,045 ,574
Denmark 9,920 9,032
Germany 568,213 500,481
Greece 96,237 67,425
Spain 51,665 45,389
France 13,801 17,722
Ireland 2,39 2,824
Ttaly 344,455 294,349
Luxembourg 12 119
Netherlands 7,876 7,272
Austria 9,226 5,723
Poland 324 23
Portugal 47,509 58,233
Finland 2,171 2,076
Sweden 1,035 944
United Kingdom 75,959 76,435
Czech Republic 34 0
Estonia 33 0
Hungary 8 0
TOTAL 1,244,919 1,102,621

The figures given in this table represent a theoretical maximum rather than the amounts that will
actually be made available to the Communities’ budget, for the following reasons:

The Member States do not always report the results of their recovery operations (and certainly not
promptly).

Although Member States must inform the Commission of the likelihood of recovery, it is impossible
to determine exactly what proportion of the amounts stll to be recovered will actually be
recovered. National laws sometimes provide for a 30-year limitation period, which may well make
the national authorities delay formally writing off the debt even if the chances of recovery are only
theoretical. For structural operations, Member States must now send the Commission once a year a
statement of the amounts awaiting recovery (Article 8 of Regulation No 438/2001) to give a better
picture of the actual situation.

Even if the Member State concerned launches recovery proceedings in time, a positive outcome is
not guaranteed. This is particularly true where recovery orders are contested in the courts.

Individual projects are co-financed as part of multi-annual programmes. As long as a multi-annual
programme has not been closed, it is impossible to put an exact figure on the amounts to be
recovered because the sums involved in irregularities may, in certain circumstances, be reallocated
to other, legitimate projects and because payment by instalments, in particular final payments, can
sometimes be used as a means of adjusting expenditure. The figures in these tables are provisional
figures based on the reports received and processed up to the end of March 2006. These figures may
therefore be changed in line with further reports arriving late.
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The prospects of recovery in individual cases cannot be assessed with sufficient accuracy from the
information forwarded by the Member States.

On the date when the consolidated annual accounts were drawn up, the annual report on the fight
against fraud for 2005 had not yet been adopted.

6.4 OTHER CONTINGENT ASSETS

Quantified amounts:

The most significant item included here concerns estimated amounts of EUR 1.15 billion to be received
under the agricultural conformity clearance decisions framework for the period 2001-2005. As the
amounts are not yet definitive, they are not recognised on the balance sheet.

Also included under this heading is a probable receivable of EUR 52.9 million related to a penalty
payment following a judgement of the Furopean Court of Justice during 2005 relating to the non-
respect of certain Communities fisheries regulations by France. A first fine of EUR 20 million had been
paid in September 2005. A second part of the Judgement was that an additional penalty needed to be
paid covering the period 15/07/2005 - 15/01/2007 if no improvements to the control system were
effectively implemented. This part is currently being evaluated, thus the receivable is not yet certain, so
not recognised on the balance sheet.

Additionally an amount of EUR 26,6 million is included here, which relates to a potential receivable
from a Member State following audits made.

Non-quantified amounts:

In the Annual Activity Report (AAR) each authorising officer reports on policy results and on the
reasonable assurance he/she may have that the resources assigned to the activities described in his/her
report have been used for their intended purpose and in accordance with the principles of sound
financial management, and that the control procedures put in place give the necessary guarantees
concerning the legality and regularity of the underlying transactions.

For 2005, and taking an overall view, the Commission considers in the synthesis report that internal
control system put in place, with the limitations described in the 2005 AAR, provides reasonable
assurance on the legality and regularity of operations, for which the Commission is responsible under
article 274 EC. Some Directors-General made reservations and quantified when possible the global
impact of these reservations.

DG Education and Culture raised a reserve concerning accounting: ie. an insufficient assurance
regarding the reliability of recorded amounts due to the impossibility of checking all the transactions

figuring in the accounting system before the deadline for finalising the accounts.

Detailed explanations are included in the Annual Activity Report of each DG and in the 2005 annual
synthesis report.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

6.5 GUARANTEES GIVEN

6.5.1 On loans granted by the European Investment Bank (EIB) to third countries from its own
resources

As formulated, the guarantee legally covers the loans signed by the EIB at 31 December 2005 (including
loans granted to Member States before accession). However, the Communities' guarantee is limited to a
percentage of the ceiling of the credit lines authorised: 65%, 70%, 75% or 100%. Where the ceiling is not
reached, the Communities' guarantee covers the full amount.

At 31 December 2005 the amount outstanding totalled EUR 15,055 million (2004: EUR 13,900 million)
and this, therefore, is the maximum risk faced by the Communities.

For loans covered by the Communities' budget guarantee, the EIB also obtains guarantees from third
parties (States, public or private financial institutions); in these cases the Commission is a secondary
guarantor. The Communities' budget guarantee covers only the political risk of guarantees provided
under the title of "risk-sharing". The other risks are covered by the EIB should the primary guarantor
not honour the undertakings given.

For guarantees provided under the title of "non-risk sharing", all the risks are covered by the
Communities' budget should the primary guarantor not honour its undertakings given. If the primary
guarantor is a public authority these risks are confined as a rule to the political risk, but when the
guarantees are provided by an institution or a private company, the Communities' budget might also
have to cover the commercial risk.

The loans granted by the EIB from its own resources to third countries and covered by the
Communities' budget guarantee are as follows:

EUR wmullions

EIB loans guaranteed by the Communities

65% guarantee 1,624 4,427 1,047 7,098 4,980
70% guarantee 502 3,262 416 4,180 4,384
75% guarantee - 1,738 211 1,949 2,442
100% guarantee - 1,366 462 1,828 2,094
Total 2,126 10,793 2,136 15,055 13,900

6.5.2 Guarantees signed by the European Investment Fund (EIF)

At 31 December 2005 the EIF had signed guarantees and commitments in venture capital operations
totalling EUR 3,160.1 million, however of this amount EUR 719.2 million relates to the portfolio of
guarantee operations for projects related to the development of Trans-European Networks (TEN) that
has been transferred to the EIB (the relevant Agreement was signed with the EIB on December 7, 2000.)
The EIB bears the risk of the transactions (with the EIF remaining the guaranteeing party under the
relevant Guarantee Agreements) and in return is entitled to receive the related fees (utilisation fee +
commitment fee) from the intermediaries, Excluding these amounts since the EIF bears no risk, the total
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guarantees given and commitments in venture capital operations by the EIF at 31 December 2005 is
thus EUR 2,440.9 million; this represents a maximum potential risk of EUR 732.3 million for the
European Communities, as the Communities contribute 30% of the capital of the EIF. The total capital
subscribed by the Communities is EUR 600 million, of which 20% has been called up.

The proportion of the capital subscribed by the European Communities which has not been called up
(80%) is also included in the off-balance-sheet commitments as a contingent liability (note 6.13.2).

6.6 EAGGF GUARANTEE
6.6.1 Clearance of accounts

These are contingent liabilities towards the Member States connected with the EAGGF clearance of
accounts procedures, The determination of the final amount of the liability and the year in which it will
be charged to the budget will depend on the length of the procedure before the Court of Justice. An
estimate of the probable amounts to be paid (EUR 60 million) has also been included as a long-term
provision on the balance sheet (see note E 3.13).

6.6.2 Contingent liabilities in respect of judgements pending execution

At the end of 2004, this amount represented contingent liabilities for which the Commission decision
had not been taken by the date on which the accounts were closed and for which the compensation
arrangements needed to be agreed on between the parties concerned. At end 2005, the relevant
amounts (now amounting to EUR 17.1 million) have been included as accrued charges in the balance
sheet since the amounts are now deemed certain,

6.7  FINES

For fines imposed by the Commission for infringement of competition rules where the amount has
been provisionally paid (and thus included in the Commission balance sheet), it has been decided that
both fines for which an appeal has been lodged* and those where it is unknown if an appeal will be
made should be included as a contingent liability in the off-balance-sheet commitments pending a
decision by the Court of Justice. This contingent liability will be maintained until a decision is final.

Once notified, debtors who do not accept the Commission decision fining them are entitled to lodge an
appeal with the Court of Justice. However, the principal of the fine has to be paid within the prescribed
time limit, since under Article 242 of the EC Treaty appeals do not have suspensory effect. Thus,
debtors have two options: they can either provide a bank guarantee (shown under contingent assets) or
make a provisional payment (shown under cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet.)

Only once the final judgment is delivered, does the Accounting Officer either refund fully or partly the
amount of the provisional payment plus the interest or irrevocably collect the full (or part) amount of
the fine, as tixed by the final judicial decision.

Interest earned on provisional payments (EUR 154.4 million) is included in the economic result for the
year and also as a contingent liability to reflect the uncertainty of the amounts.

4 Even if the appeal against fines imposed in 2005 was made in 2006 before the closure of accounts.

105



Final Annual Accounts of the European Communities 2005

6.8 AMOUNTS RELATED TO LEGAL CASES AND OTHER DISPUTES

This heading relates to actions for damages currently being brought against the Communities, other
legal disputes and the estimated legal costs. The most significant amounts are summarised below:

- Action brought against it in June 2003 in relation to a ruling made by the Commission. The claim
is for EUR 735 million. The Commission submitted its rejoinder in February 2005. Unlikely to be
decided before 2007.

- Action for damages brought in October 2003, also in relation to a ruling made by the
Commission. The claim is for an amount of EUR 1,664 million, The Commission submitted its
rejoinder in November 2004. Unlikely to be decided before 2007.

- In May 2004 the owner of a building in Brussels initiated a legal process in the Court of First
Instance against the Commission in order to be compensated for a non-signature of a lease
contract. The Commission currently estimates the possible obligation to be EUR 20 million, which
is thus treated as contingent liability.

- EUR 22 miilion concerns cases for damages brought against the Commission in the area of health.

- Other amounts are related to disputes involving suppliers, contractors and former staff.

It should be noted that in an action for damages under Article 288 EC the applicant must demonstrate a
sufficiently serious breach by the institution of a rule of law intended to confer rights on individuals,
real harm suffered by the applicant, and a direct causal link between the unlawful act and the harm.

6.9 OTHER CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Included under this heading at the end of 2004, was the maximum possible liability, estimated at EUR
23.4 million (being net of the amounts already entered as either provisions or debts) concerning certain
disease eradication costs that may have to have been borne by the Communities' budget. At end 2005
there was no outstanding contingent liability for this matter.

Also included here is the outstanding contractual obligation of EUR 130.2 million relating to the
construction of the Council’s LEX-building, as well as EUR 239 million relating to building contracts of
the Parliament. The other significant amount included is EUR 330 million that concerns the extension of
a Court of Justice building in Luxembourg.

COMMITMENTS FOR FUTURE FUNDING

6.10 UNDRAWN COMMITMENTS

These are lending and equity investment agreements entered into by the Commission and ECSC in
liquidation (not covered by the RAL) but not yet drawn down by the other party before the year-end.

6,11 COMMITMENTS AGAINST APPROPRIATIONS NOT YET CONSUMED

This amount represents the amount of the open commitments for which payments have not yet been
made. At 31 December 2005 the RAL totalled EUR 119.1 billion. The amount disclosed as a future
commitment to be funded is this budgetary RAL less related amounts that have been included as
expenses in the Economic OQutturn Account giving a total of EUR 88.8 billion.

The RAL is the normal consequence of the existence of multi-annual programmes. In order to have a
more precise view of the composition of this amount, it was decided to identify separately the oldest
commitments or those for which no movements were noted. Thus the concept “Potentially Abnormal
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RAL” (PAR) was defined. It is composed of the com mitments which answer the one of the two
following conditions:
- A commitment of more than five years old
- Commitments for which no accounting transaction (payment or de-commitment) was noted
during the last two years.

As a result of the joint statements of November 2002 and 2003, the Commission, the FEuropean
Parliament and the Council stressed the need to eliminate gradually this potentially abnormal RAL.
Thus at the beginning of each financial year the commitments meeting this definition are identified and
are the subject of an individual examination. The remaining commitments are classified in 8 separate
categories according to the identified hypothetical case. This regular analysis leads to a continuous
reduction of this part of the RAL and avoids keeping in the accounts amounts that no longer
correspond to any legal commitment.

Thus during the financial year 2005, the potentially abnormal RAL was reduced by 48%. The following
table gives the situation by heading of the financial perspective:

Potentially Abnormal RAL (PAR) EUR

griculture 2,074,137 ) (2,060,350) 13,787
Structural actions 6,296,247,277 | (2,416,431,008) |  (1,073,475,677) 2,806,340,592
Internal policies 1,196,515,414 (358,981,904) (198,920,639) 638,612,871
External policies 2,074,138,692 (554,000,167) (281,897,691) 1,238,240,834
Administration 8,265,615 - (3,917,209) 4,348,406
Pre-adhesion 1,198,127,481 (256,623,707) (34,755,523) 906,748,251
Other 99,743 - (99,743) -
Total 10,775,468,359 |  (3,586,036,786) | _ (1,595,126,832) 5,594,304,741

612 LEGAL COMMITMENTS FOR WHICH BUDGET COMMITMENTS HAVE
NOT YET BEEN MADE

These commitments originated because the Commission decided to enter into legal commitments in
respect of amounts that were not covered by commitment appropriations in the budget.

Under the Inter-institutional Agreement and, more generally, the rules relating to the budget, the
following expenditure must be recorded as off-balance-sheet commitments in view of the volume of
financial commitments which arises:

® 6121 & 6.12.2: The Structural Funds and the Cohesion Fund represent expenditure targets and the

whole allocation shown in the financial perspective is meant to be matched by decisions. As a
result, contingent commitments are evaluated at a maximum,
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Legal Commitments without budgetary commitments - Structural Operations

Objective 1 28.46
Objective 2 344
Objective 3 429
FIFG (outside objective 1) 0.25
Communities initiatives 2.58
Total 39.02

*  6.12.3: [SPA: In itself, the ISPA Regulation does not lead to off-balance-sheet commitments as it
does not provide for an annual allocation or even a total allocation. This is determined each year by
the budgetary authority in line with the financial perspective. The ceilings in heading 7 (pre-
accession) are not expenditure targets and the Inter-institutional Agreement allows a degree of
flexibility between the various pre-accession instruments. On the other hand, ISPA generates
contingent liabilities in connection with the individual projects as they involve a number of annual
tranches of which only the first is covered by a budget commitment when the decision is adopted.

* 6.12.4: The Temporary Rural Development Instrument (TRDI) for the new Member States is funded
under the EAGGF-Guarantee and covers the period 2004 to 2006. It is financed under differentiated
appropriations and annual commitments are automatically made each year on the basis of the
Commission decision approving the programme. No additional annual decision is required. The
Commission decision represents an expenditure target and the whole allocation is meant to be
matched by decisions.

¢+ 6.125: The commitments made under financial protocols with Mediterranean non-member
countries: the amount included here is the difference between the total amount of the protocols
signed and the amount of the budget commitments entered in the accounts. These Protocols are
international treaties that cannot be wound up without the agreement of both parties, although the
process (of winding them up) is on-going,.

o 6.12.6 & 6.12.7: Commitments entered into with specified third parties for other operations under
external and fisheries actions, relating to specific amounts over a fixed period.

The other multi-annual programmes do not contain any commitments to be included under contingent

liabilities: expenditure in future years is conditional on the annual decisions by the budgetary authority
or changes in the rules concerned.

6.13 CONTRIBUTIONS TO RELATED ORGANISATIONS
This sum represents payments outstanding on non-called-up capital subscribed by the Commission.

6.13.1 Uncalled share capital: EBRD

ELIR mullions

P
Paid-in -157.5

Uncalled 14,593 4425
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6.13.2 Uncalled share capital: EIF
EUR millions

Capital 2,000 600
Paid-in -400 -120
Uncalled 1,600 480

6.13.3 Uncalled share capital: Galileo joint venture

-488 -438
Uncalled 92 82
Incl, in RAL N/A -58
Contingent Liability N/A 24

Pursuant to Council Regulation (EC) No 876/2002 of 21 May 2002 the Commission's contribution to the
Galileo joint venture is EUR 520 million. This commitment is for a period of four years ending in 2006.
Commitments of EUR 58 million not yet paid are included in the RAL (above) and so deducted from the
above uncalled amounts.

6.14 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

This heading covers buildings and other equipment rented under operating leasing contracts that do
not meet the conditions for entry on the assets side of the balance sheet. The amounts indicated
correspond to commitments still to be paid during the term of the contracts, except for the Court of
Justice's Palais building, which is occupied under an indefinite lease; here, the amount of EUR 2.3
million corresponds to the annual rent.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

EUR millions

Buildings 1726 176.7 546.6 6753 1,398.6
IT materials and

other equipment 11.4 9.0 7.8 0.0 16.8
Total 184.0 185.7 554.4 675.3 1415.4
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MACRO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (MFA) AND EURATOM

The following disclosures relate to lending and borrowing activities carried out by the European
Communities through Macro Financial Assistance (MFA) and Euratom.

71  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The lending and borrowing transactions, as well as related treasury management, are carried out by the
Communities according to the respective Euratom Council Decisions’, if applicable, and internal
guidelines.

Written procedure manuals covering specific areas such as borrowings, loans and treasury
management have been developed and are used by the relevant operating units. Financial and
operational risks are identified and evaluated and compliance to internal guidelines and procedures is
checked regularly.

As a general rule, there are no hedging activities carried-out as lending operations are financed by
“back-to-back” operations and as there are no open currency positions existing. However, derivative
financtal instruments can be used to hedge certain risk exposures when no perfect matching between
lending and borrowing activities can be reached. A detailed description of such financial instruments
can be found under section E 3.3.3.2.

7.2 CURRENCY RISK

Since all financial assets and liabilities are denominated in euros, the Communities do not take on
exposure to effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash
flows,

7.3  INTEREST RATE RISK

Due to the nature of its lending and borrowing activities, the Communities have significant interest-
bearing assets and liabilities.

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Communities to cash flow interest rate risk. They
represent approximately 94% of the total volume of borrowings. However, the interest rate risks that
arise from borrowings are offset by equivalent loans in terms and conditions (“back-to-back”
operations). At the balance sheet date, the Communities have loans (expressed in nominal amounts)
with variable rates of EUR 1.38 billion (2004: EUR 1.31 billion), with a re-pricing taking place every 6
months, The Communities also have loans (expressed in nominal amounts) with fixed rates for EUR 85
million in 2005 (2004: EUR 70 million), they have a final maturity date of more than five years.

The MFA swap agreement, as detailed in section E 3.8.2, was entered into to match the cash flow of a
loan with a floating interest rate and a final maturity on 22 December 2008, on one side and, the cash

390/212/Euratom: Council Decision of 23 April 1990 amending Decision 77/271/Euratom on the implementation of Decision

77/270/ Euratom empowering the Commission to issue Euratom loans for the purpose of contributing to the financing of nuclear power
stations, Official jerrnal L 112, 03/05/1990 P. 26;

77/271/Euratom: Council Decision of 29 March 1977 on the implementation of Decision 77/ 270/ Euratom empowering the
Commission to issue Euratom loans for the purpose of contributing to the financing of nuclear power stations, Official Journal L 088,
06/04/1977 P. 11;

94/179/Euratom: Council Decision of 21 March 1994 amending Decision 77/ 270/ Euratom, to authorize the Commission to contract
Euratom borrowings in order to contribute to the financing required for improving the degree of safety and efficiency of nuclear power
stations in certain non- member countries, Official Journal L 084, 29/03/1994 P. 41 - 43
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flow of the corresponding borrowing with a fixed interest rate and a final maturity on 22 December
2005, on the other side. The swap agreement was structured in two “tranches”: the “swap tranche”,
where both floating and fixed rate legs were active, ended on 22 December 2005, the second “tranche”
with only the floating rate leg being a forward floating borrowing starting on the same date.

74  CREDIT RISK

The Communities take on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Exposure to credit risk is managed, firstly by obtaining country
guarantees in the case of Euratom, then through the Guarantee Fund. The Guarantee Fund for external
actions® was set up in 1994 to cover default risks related to borrowings which finance loans to countries
outside the European Union. In order to avoid any delays in payments due by the Entity, such
borrowings are serviced by means of cash advances from the EC budget. If, three months after a
payment is due, it is confirmed that a recipient country has defaulted, the cash advances are repaid to
the budget by the Guarantee Fund for external actions.

The largest concentrations of credit risk that the Communities have are towards Bulgaria, Serbia-
Montenegro and Romania. These countries represent approximately 33%, 15% and 13% respectively of
the total volume of loans.

As far as treasury operations are concerned, guidelines on the choice of counterparties must be applied.
Accordingly, the operating unit will be able to enter into deals only with eligible banks being part of a
“trading list of authorized banks” and having sufficient counterparty limits.

7.5 FAIRVALUE

The estimated fair value of loans and borrowings is determined using a discounted cash flow model.
According to this model, expected future cash flows are discounted by applying AAA yield curves
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

The estimated fair value of floating rates loans are assumed to approximate their carrying amount since
re-pricing at market interest rates takes place every 6 months.

At the balance sheet date, the estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing loans (including fixed rate
leg of interest rate swap) and borrowings amount to EUR 99.4 million (2004: EUR 206.3 million) and
EUR 99.1 million (2004: EUR 208.1 million), respectively, compared to corresponding book value of
EUR 87.3 million (2004: EUR 197 million) and EUR 87.3 million (2004: EUR 197 million), respectively.

The negative difference between the estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing loans and borrowings
as at 31 December 2004 is to be considered together with the positive fair value of the “swap tranche”
(see note E.3.8.2).

® Council Regulation (EC, Euratom) No 2728/94 of 31 Oclober 1994 establishing a Guarantee Fund for external actions, Official Journal L
293,12/11/1994 P. 1- 4
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GUARANTEE FUND

The following disclosures relate to the asset management of the Guarantee Fund carried out by the
European investment Bank on behalf of the European Communities.

7.6 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The rules and principles for the asset management of the Guarantee Fund are laid out in the
Convention between the European Commission and the European Investment Bank (EIB) dated 25
November 1994 and the subsequent amendments dated 17/23 September 1996 and 8 May 2002,

The main principles, as extracted directly from the Convention, are as follows:
* The Guarantee Fund will operate in one single currency: EURO. It will exclusively invest in this
currency in order to avoid any exchange rate risk.

* Management of the assets will be based upon the traditional rules of prudence adhered to for
financial activities. It will have to pay particular attention to reducing the risks and to ensuring
that the managed assets have a sufficient degree of liquidity and transferability, taking into
account the commitments to which the Guarantee Fund will be confronted.

* The Guarantee Fund will be able to use all the hedging instruments against the market and
interest risks, already used by the Portfolio Division of the EIB.

* The portfolio management will be based on the optimal duration and on the best possible
allocation between short term and long term, in order to draw a real advantage from the rates
curve. In order to be able to quickly modify the duration of the portfolio according to the
forecast of the future conditions of the market, the promoter will use, with the exclusive aim of
hedging, the instruments available on the market for which the EIB already has the necessary
experience.

7.7  INTEREST RATE POSITION

Theoretically, hedging instruments could be used to manage the interest rate (market) risk. However
as agreed between the Commission and the EIB, no significant risk is currently taken and therefore
hedging is not performed. As the transactions and operations are only denominated in Euro, no other
hedging is required. The distribution of the Guarantee Fund’s holdings at 31 December 2005 (market
value excluding accrued interest) is detailed in the table below:

urrent accounts 1,582,090 0 0 0 1,582,090
Short term deposits - 313,500,000 0 0 0 313,500,000
nominal
Available-for-sale assets | 25,564,200 | 83,102,060 791,230,957 84,470,004 984,367,221
TOTAL 340,646,290 83,102,060 791,230,957 84,470,004 1,299,449,311
Percentage 26.2% 6.4% 60.9% 6.5% 100.00%

For the cash and cash equivalents (fixed term deposits), the effective interest rate range is between
2.13% and 2.41%. For the Available-for-Sale (AFS) securities portfolio, the effective interest rate range is
between 2.61% and 5.92%.
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For the short-term deposits, the interest rate (IR) exposure for 1 basis point (bp) is EUR 2,569 and for the
bond portfolio, the IR exposure for 1bp is EUR 317,900. For the short-term deposits, the interest rate
(IR) exposure range for +1% /-1% is EUR 256,656 to EUR (257,213) and the bond portfolio, the IR
exposure range for +1% /-1% is EUR 30,868,578 to EUR (32,760,122).

7.8  LIQUIDITY POSITION

The table below provides an analysis of assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. It is presented
under the most prudent consideration of maturity dates. Therefore, in the case of liabilities the earliest
possible repayment date is shown, while for assets it is the latest possible repayment date.

Those assets and liabilities that do not have a contractual maturity date are grouped together in the
“Maturity undefined” category.

Assets in EUJ

Current accounts 1,582,090 0 0 0 1,582,090
Ghort term deposits 314,441,933 0 0 0 314,441,933
Of which accrued interests 941,933 0 0 0 941,933
\Available-for-sale assets 32,011,865 100,927,108 791,230,957 84,470,004 1,008,639,934
Of which accrued interests 6,447,665 17,825,048 ¢ 0 24,272,713
TOTAL 348,035,888 100,927,108 791,230,957 84,470,004 1,324,663,957
Liabilities in EUR:

IAccount payables 725,117 0 0 0 725,117
TOTAL 725,117 0 0 0 725,117
Net liquidity position at| 347,310,771 100,927,108 791,230,957 84,470,004 | 1,323,938,840
31.12.2005

7.9  CREDIT RISK

Fixed Term Deposits - Profile of counterparties

In accordance with the agreement between the Community and the EIB on the management of the
Guarantee Fund, all the inter-bank investments should have a minimum credit rating of Al. The
Commission was informed in April 2005 that one counterparty has a long term rating of A2. Short-
term inter-bank investments, including accrued interest, by type of counterparty at 31 December 2005
are as follows:

A1 | 74203179 23% 0 0%

A2 30,104,816 10% 0 0%
Aal 28,093,133 9% 178,760,865 33%
Aa2 37,110,996 12% 162,189,715 29%
Aal 144,929,309 46% 210,287 489 38%

Total 314,441,933 100% 551,238,069 100%

Available-for-sale assets - Profile of issuers

All the securities held meet the following criteria:
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* Either they are issued by states in, or by institutions guaranteed by, the European Union, the
G10 or supranational bodies;

*  Or they are issued by another sovereign state with a rating of at least AA3;

*  Or they are issued by another issuer with a rating of AAA.

The profile of issuers, market value excluding accrued interest, at 31 December 2005 is as follows:

EUR

Other issuers AAA 322,068,453 32% 364,552,225 35%
Supra 16,279,008 2% 31,419,327 3%
Govt./ Agencies AAA 248,536,575 25% 268,604,096 25%
Govt./Agencies AA2 100,525,980 10% 129,078,334 12%
Govt./ Agencies AA1 133,813,520 14% 136,098,435 13%
Govt./ Agencies Al 137,672,642 14% 104,032,885 10%
Govt./ Agencies A2 15,014,543 2% 10,008,500 1%
Govt./ Agencies NR 10,456,500 1% 10,850,000 1%
Total 984,367,221 100% 1,054,683,802 100%

EUROPEAN COAL & STEEL COMMUNITIES (in liquidation)

The following disclosures relate to lending and borrowing, as well as treasury activities carried out by
the European Communities through the European Coal & Steel Communities (in Liquidation).

710 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Following the expiry of the ECSC Treaty on 23 July 2002, the Member States decided’that the assets and
liabilities of the ECSC be passed to the European Communities, and that the liquidation of the liabilities
of the Community be managed by the Commission. Thus, no new loans and no corresponding funding
are allowed for the ECSC in liquidation. New ECSC borrowings are restricted to refinancing with the
aim to reduce the cost of funds.

The asset and liability management is carried out by the Commission in accordance with internal
guidelines. Written procedures manuals covering specific areas such as borrowings, loans and treasury
management have been developed and are used by the relevant operating units, Financial and
operational risks are identified and evaluated and compliance to internal guidelines and procedures is
checked regularly.

As far as treasury operations are concerned, the principles of prudent management with a view to
minimize operational risk, counterparty risk and market risk are to be applied.

Investments are restricted in principle to the following categories: term deposits with banks, money
market instruments, fixed and floating rate bonds.

The main investment limits per category are as follows:

7 Regulation (EC) 1840/ 2002 of the European Parliament and the Council
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* For term deposits, a bank is authorised to receive funds if the respective short-term rating is at
least A-1 (S&P) or equivalent. The maximum limit per counterparty is the lower of either EUR
100 million per bank or 5% of the bank's own funds.

* Bonds issued or guaranteed by Member States or institutions of the Union up to EUR 250
million per Member State or institution depending on its rating.

* Bonds of other sovereign or supranational issuers with a long-term credit rating of not less than
AA (5&P) or equivalent, EUR 100 million per issuer or guarantor.

* Bonds of other issuers having a minimum rating of AA (S&P) or equivalent, up to EUR 50
million, depending on the rating and issuer status.

The ECSC in liquidation uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. A
detailed description of such financial instruments can be found under note E 3.3.3.2.

711 MARKET RISK

7.11.1. Foreign exchange risk

The ECSC in liquidation is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures with
respect to the US dollar and the UK pound.

The table below summarises the ECSC in liquidation's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk
at 31 December 2005. Included in the table are the ECSC in liquidation's assets and liabilities at their
Euro equivalent nominal values, categorised by currency.

ELIR mullions
Assets 223.01 84.99
Liabilities 305.68 84.77
Net balance sheet position (82.67) .22
Effect of cross currency interest rate swaps 87.56 -
Net exposure 4.89 0.22

The GBP assets and liabilities position is mainly composed of euro equivalent 149.5 million unquoted
debt securities issued by the European Investment Bank as substitute of a defaulted debtor (see note
E3.4.2). The effect of cross currency interest rate swap corresponds to the euro equivalent notional
amount of the swap, which is used to reduce the ECSC in liquidation's exposure to currency
movements (see note E 3.3.3.2). Remaining net exposure results of euro equivalent 4.12 million housing
loans and euro equivalent 0.77 million current account balances. The US dollar position principally
consists of euro equivalent 84.8 million loan granted from borrowed funds. Net exposure results of €
equivalent .22 million current account balances,

According to the Procedures Manual, buying euro is the only foreign exchange operation authorised
for EC business. All exceptions to this rule must be duly motivated.

7.11.2. Price risk

The ECSC in liquidation is exposed to debt securities price risk because of investments classified on the
balance sheet as available for sale.
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712 INTEREST RATE RISK

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Due to the nature of its
activities, the ECSC in liquidation takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rate on both its fair value and cash flow risks.

(a) Loans granted from borrowed funds

The interest rate risks that arise from borrowings are generally offset by equivalent loans in terms and
conditions (back-to-back operations). In case that no perfect matching can be reached, derivative
financial instruments are used to reduce the exposure to interest rate movements {see note E 3.3.3.2)

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities issued at variable rates expose the ECSC in liquidation to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas debt securities at fixed rates expose the Community to fair value interest rate risk. Fixed rate
bonds represent approximately 85% of the investment portfolio at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The market price of a debt security depends on the time to maturity, its coupon and the actual yield to
maturity. For the shock analysis all debt securities of the portfolio (incl. Floating Rate Notes) are once
priced at actual yields, then re-priced at yields shifted upwards by 100 bps. The change in market price
is the reported hypothetical loss for the shock analysis. The 100 bps parallel shift is assumed to happen
instantaneously, no time horizon is considered. At 31 December 2005 this hypothetical loss was about
EUR 43.9 million.

713 CREDIT RISK

The ECSC in liquidation takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be
unable to pay amounts in full when due.

Guidelines on the choice of counterparties must be applied. Accordingly, the operating unit will be able
to enter into deals only with eligible banks being part of a “trading list of authorized banks” and having
sufficient counterparty limits.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers to meet interest
and capital repayment obligations.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed by obtaining collateral as well as country, corporate and
personal guarantees.

At 31 December 2005, the total outstanding nominal amount of loans granted by the ECSC in
Liquidation was EUR 374.96 million, broken down as follows (in EUR millions):

Loans granted to credit institutions 55.89
Loans granted to customers 319.07
Total 374.96

59.41% of the total amount outstanding is covered by guarantees from a Member State or equivalent
bodies (public institutions or public-sector industrial groupings in the Member States). 16.80% of loans
outstanding have been granted to banks or have been guaranteed by banks.

5.35% of the outstanding debt (EUR 20.1 million) is made up of loans granted to European institutions
officials from the former ECSC pension fund (in the summary table above, loans to officials are
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included in loans to customers), which are covered by life-and disability insurances and the respective
salaries.

The outstanding loan balance, i.e. 18.44% (18.55% as of 31 December 2004}, should be considered as
presenting a higher degree of risk. It means that the guarantees received (guarantee bonds put up by
private industrial groupings and other special guarantees) do not generally provide the same level of
security in the event of problems.

From a liquidity perspective, the loans granted on borrowed funds were fully covered by a provision
for risks and charges called "Guarantee Fund". By applying the new accounting rules, this provision has
been replaced as at 1 January 2005 by a dedicated reserve. This reserve amounts to EUR 207 million at
31 December 2005.

The loans granted on own funds were covered by another reserve, formerly called "ECSC Special
Reserve". This special reserve amounts to EUR 64 million at 31 December 2005.

(@) Cash and deposits with credit institutions - profile of counterparties

At the balance sheet date, 15% and 85% of deposits and current account balances are placed with banks
rated (Fitch) F1+ (or equivalent) and F1 (or equivalent), respectively.

All deposits and current account balances are held with banks within the OECD.
(b} Loans and advances - profile of borrowers

Geographical concentrations of the loans granted from borrowed funds (expressed at their
outstanding nominal amount) at the balance sheet date are as follows:

EUR millions

Greece 84.77 1
France 133.82 2
Ttaly 3.86 12
United Kingdom 68.58 1
Total 291.03 16
These loans were backed by guarantees as follows:
EUR millions

Greece 84.77 - - - 84.77
France - - 133.82 - 133.82
Italy - 3.86 - - 3.86
United - - - 68.58 68.58
Kingdom i

Total EC 84.77 3.86 133.82 68.58 291.03

Following a restructuring of debts of a defaulting debtor in 1998, the Commission acquired EUR 149.54
million promissory notes from European Investment Bank (rated AAA) in order to re-establish the
back-to back character of the lending/borrowing transaction and thus cover interest rate and currency
risk. These promissory notes are not included in the tables above.
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Geographical concentrations of the loans granted on own funds -without loans to European
Institutions officials -(expressed at their outstanding nominal amount) at the balance sheet date are as
follows:

EUR millions

Belgium 3.46 20
Denmark 0.01 1
Germany 31.75 36
Greece 0.35 9
Spain 7.46 21
France 6.31 22
Ireland 0.22 9
Ttaly 4.44 21
Luxembourg 0.66 6
Netherlands 0.55 7
Austria 3.39 2
Portugal 0.46 6
Finland 0.65 2
United Kingdom 412 21
Total 63.83 183

NB: These are loans for financing the construction of subsidised housing at an interest rate of 1% p.a

These loans were backed by guarantees as follows:

EUR mnillions

Belgium 346

Denmark - 0.01 - - - 0.01
Germany - 31.75 - - - 31.75
Greece - 0.35 - - - 0.35
Spain - 7.46 - - - 7.46
France - 6.10 - - 0.21 6.31
Ireland 0.22 - - - - 0.22
[taly - 444 - - - 4.44
Luxembourg - 0.66 - - - (.66
Netherlands - - - 0.55 - 0.55
Austria - 3.39 - - - 3.39
Portugal - 0.46 - - - 046
Finland - 0.65 - - - 0.65
UK - 412 - - - 4,12
Total 0.22 62.85 - 0.55 0.21 63.83

(1) Mainly loans granted to financial institutions for en-lending to fial recipient
(c) Dertvative financial instruments - profile of counterparties: See note E 3.3.3.2

(d) Available-for-sale securities - profile of issuers

Details of the debt securities (expressed at their fair value) by issuer type and by rating (Standard &
Poor's) at the balance sheet date are as follows:

EUR
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Sovereign 444,410,188 315
Multinational Organisations 82,761,522 59
Banks & Financial Institutions 697,072,995 49 4
Other Public Issuer 186,314,769 13.2
Total 1,410,559,474 100

EUR

AAA 873,805.754 61.9
AA+ 114,409,488 8.2
AA 122,419,397 8.7
AA- 71,922,828 51
A+ 50,027,842 3.5
A- 142,200,568 10.1
BBB+ 35,773,597 2.5
Total 1,410,559,474 100

Geographical concentrations of the debt securities (expressed at their fair value) at the balance sheet
date are as follows:

EUR millions

Austria

57.51 41
Belgium 10.90 0.8
Canada 10.42 0.7
Cyprus 34.28 24
Czech Republic 11.10 0.8
Denmark 10.15 0.7
Finland 10.17 0.7
France 187.62 13.3
Germany 377.86 26.8
United Kingdom 47.15 33
Greece 15.75 1.1
Hungary 92.48 6.6
[reland 73.42 52
Italy 62.10 44
Lithuania 22.14 1.6
Luxemburg 30.84 23
Latvia 10.92 0.8
Netherlands 95.16 6.7
Poland 35.78 25
Slovak Rep 5.55 0.4
Spain 120.06 8.5
Switzerland 42.30 3.0
United States 46.90 3.3
1410.56 100,0

714 LIQUIDITY RISK

The liquidity risk that arises from borrowings is generally offset by equivalent loans in terms and
conditions (back-to-back operations). In case that no perfect matching can be reached, derivative
financial instruments are used to match cash flows.
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For the asset management of ECSC in liquidation, the Commission manages liquidity requirements
based on disbursement forecast with a 11 years horizon obtained through consultations with the
responsible Commission services. Investments are carried out accordingly to meet respective annual
requirements.

711 FAIR VALUE

Loans and borrowings

The estimated fair value of loan and borrowings is determined using a discounted cash flow model.
According to this model, expected future cash flows are discounted by applying AAA vyield curves
appropriate for the remaining term of maturity.

The estimated fair value of floating rate loans are assumed to approximate their carrying amount since
re-pricing at market interest rates takes place every 3 or 6 months.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing loans and borrowings could not be obtained as the
necessary data for calculating these values was not available.

Auvailable-for-sale securities

The available-for-sale securities are presented at fair value which is the market price plus accrued
interests.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The total amount of the change in fair value estimated using a valuation technique that was recognized
in the economic outturn account during the year is EUR 1.57 million (net profit). There are no financial
instruments measured at fair value using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market prices or rates,

Recetvables and payables

The nominal value less impairment provision of trade receivables and the nominal value of trade
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.

Cash and cash equivalents

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents including currents accounts and short-term deposits (of less
than three months) is their carrying amount.
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For the purposes of presenting information on related party transactions concerning the key
management of the European Communities, such persons are shown here under five categories:

Category 1: the President of the Commission, the President of the Court of Justice and the President of

the Court of First Instance

Category 2: the Vice-presidents of the Commission
Category 3: the Members of the Commission, the Judges and Advocates General of the Court of Justice,
the Members of the Court of First Instance, the Ombudsman and the European Data Protection

Supervisor

Category 4: the President and Members of the Court of Auditors
Category 5: the highest ranking civil servants of the Institutions and Agencies (grades Al4 to A16)

KEY MANAGEMENT FINANCIAL ENTITLEMENTS

EUR

Basic salary (per month) 22,858.33 20,705.01 18,634.51 17,889.13 12,417.36 -
16,234 51
Residential allowance (% salary) 15% 15% 15% 15% N/A
Expatriation allowance (% salary) N/A N/A N/A N/A 16%
Family allowances:
Household (% salary) 2% +153.75 | 2% +153.75 2% +153.75 | 2% +15375 , 2% +153.75
Dependent child 27597 27597 27597 275.97 275.97
Pre-school 32.83 3283 32.83 32.83 32.83
Education, or 22796 227.96 227.96 22796 22796
Education outside place of
work 455.92 455.92 45592 455.92 455.92
Presiding judges allowance N/A N/A 810.74 N/A N/A
Representation allowance 1,418.07 911.38 607.71 N/A N/A
Annual travel costs N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes
Transfers to Member State:
Education allowance* Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
% of salary* 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
% of salary with no cc max 25% max 25% max 25% max 25% max 25%
Representation expenses reimbursed | reimbursed reimbursed N/A N/A
Taking up duty:
Installation expenses 45,716.66 41,410.02 37.269.02 35,778.26 N/A
Family travel expenses reimbursed | reimbursed reimbursed reimbursed | reimbursed
Moving expenses reimbursed | reimbursed reimbursed reimbursed | reimbursed
Leaving office:
Resettlement expenses 22,858.33 20,705.01 18,634.51 17,889.13 | reimbursed
Family travel expenses reimbursed | reimbursed reimbursed reimbursed | reimbursed
Moving expenses reimbursed | reimbursed reimbursed reimbursed | reimbursed
Transition (% salary)** 40% - 65% 40% - 65% 40% - 65% 40% - 65% N/A
Sickness insurance covered covered covered covered optional
Pension (% salary, before tax) Max 70% Max 70% Max 70% Max 70% Max 70%
Deductions:
Comumunity tax 8% - 45% 8% - 45% 8% -45% 8% -45% 8% - 45%
Sickness insurance (% salary) 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.8%
Special levy on salary 2.93% 2.93% 2.93% 2.93% 2.93%
Pension deduction N/A N/A N/A N/A 9.75%
Number of persons at 31/12/2005 3 5 77 25 105
* with correction coefficient (“cc”) applied
> paid for the first 3 years following departure

123




Final Annual Accounts of the European Communities 2005

124



Final Annual Accounts of the European Communities 2005

At 31 March 2006, no material issues came to the attention of the accounting officer of the Commission
or were reported to him that would require separate disclosure under this section. The annual accounts
and related notes were prepared using the most recently available information and this is reflected in
the information presented above.
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The following entities are included in the European Communities consclidated accounts:

1. Institutions and consultative bodies
Committee of the Regions

Council of the European Union

Court of Justice of the European Union
European Commission

European Court of Auditors

Eurcpean Data Protection Supervisor
European Economic and Social Committee
European Ombudsman

European Parliament

2. Community Agencies

European Agency for Reconstruction

European Agency for Safety and Health at Work

European Aviation Safety Agency

European Centre for Disease Prevention

European Centre for the Development of Vocational Training
European Environment Agency

European Food Safety Authority

European Foundation for Improvement of Living and Working Conditions
European Maritime Safety Agency

European Medicines Agency

European Monitering Centre for Drugs and Drug Addiction
European Monitoring Centre on Racism and Xenophobia
European Network and Information Security

European Training Foundation

Translation Centre for the Bodies of the Furopean Union

3. Other controlled entities
Furopean body for the enhancement of judicial co-operation (Eurojust) #
European Coal and Steel Community (in liquidation)

Galileo Joint Undertaking ¢

European Investment Fund 10

® Decentralised body of the European Union falling under the pillar “Police and Judicial Cooperation in criminal
matters”

® Proportion of interest 89.66 %, proportion of voting power 50.00 %

' Proportion of interest 30.00 %o, proportion of voting power 30.00 %
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Although the Communities manage the assets of the below mentioned entities, they do not meet the
requirements to be consolidated and so are not included in the Furopean Communities accounts:

111 THE EUROPEAN DEVELOPMENT FUND (EDF)

The European Development Fund (EDF) is the main instrument for Community aid for development
cooperation in the ACP countries and the Overseas Countries and Territories (OCT). Each Fund is
concluded for a period of five years. Since the conclusion of the first partnership convention in 1964
(Yaoundé I Convention), the EDF cycles have generally followed that of the partnership conventions of
Yaoundé and Lomé. The ninth EDF was concluded at the same time as the most recent partnership
convention, the so-called Cotonou Agreement, on June 2000. The Cotonou Agreement was signed by 77
States: 48 countries of Sub-Sahara Africa; 15 countries of the Caribbean and 14 countries of the Pacific,
The ninth EDF has been allocated EUR 13.5 billion over a period of five years. The Cotonou agreement
makes provision for only 2 financial instruments under the EDF: an instrument for granting subsidies
for long-term development support (non-reimbursable aid); and an investment facility to promote the
private sector in ACP States,

The EDF is not funded from the Communities’ Budget but from direct contributions from Member
States, which are agreed in negotiations. The amount a Member State pays is, amongst other things,
partly based on their GNP and partly based on their historical links (i.e. previous colonies) with the
ACP States involved. The Commission and EIB manage the resources of the EDF,

The EDF is governed by its own Financial Regulation (OJ L 83/1 of 01/04/2003) which foresees the
presentation of its own financial statements, separately from those of the Communities. The EDFs are
subject to the external control of the Court of Auditors and the Parliament. For information purposes,
the balance sheet and economic outturn account of the EDF are shown:

BALANCE SHEET - EDF

EUR rullions

CURRENT ASSETS 3,515.29 3,391.24
Contributions to be received 13.72 4238
Receivables 138.77 121.02
Pre-financing 2,304.20 1,885.06
Other current assets 3.31 6.89
Deferred charges 393.19 537.00
Security cash accounts 391.55 537.00
Cash & cash equivalents 270.55 261.89
TOTAL ASSETS 3,515.29 3,391.24
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 1,878.94 1,578.49
Accounts pavable 1.878.94 1.578.49
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,878.94 1,578.49
NET ASSETS 1,636.35 1,812.75

FUNDS & RESERVES

Called-up fund capital 27,390.00 25,040.00
Result for the year (2,526.40) -
Results carried forward from previous years (24,261.09) (24,261.09)
Reserves 1,033.84 1,033.84
FUNDS & RESERVES 1,636.35 1,812.75
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ECONOMIC OUTTURN ACCOUNT - EDF

EUR millions

TOTAL REVENUE 0.35
OPERATING EXPENSES 2,544.15
Operating Expenses: 2,515.78
Programme aid 949.13
Macro-economic support 383.01
Regional programs 3332
Interest-rate subsidies 0.27
Emergency aid 134,92
Refugee aid 12.99
Risk capital 60.80
Stabex 66.40
Sysmin 13.99
Transfers from former EDFs 15.61
Structural adjustments 15.89
Debt relief 21.59
Payments World Bank 1.60
Sectorial policy 49216
Compensation export receipts (3.32)
Centre for the development of enterprise 1651
Centre for the development of agriculture 11.09
General assembly 1.07
Technical assistance 0.04
Intra ACP projects 198.91
Congo Fund 89.80
Administrative expenses: 28.37
{DEFICIT) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,543.80)
NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Financial income 23.95
Financial charges {0.19)
Provisions (6.36)
SURPLUS FROM NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17.40
RESULT FOR THE YEAR (2,526.40}

11.2 THE SICKNESS INSURANCE SCHEME

The Sickness Insurance Scheme is the scheme that provides medical assurance to the staff of the various
European Communities bodies. The funds of the Scheme are its own property and are not controlled by
the Furopean Communities, although its financial assets are managed by the Commission. The Scheme
is funded by contributions from its members (staffy and from the employers (the
Institutions/ Agencies/bodies.) Any surplus remains within the Scheme.

The scheme has four separate entities - the main scheme covering staff of the Institutions, Agencies of
the European Communities, and three smaller schemes covering staff in the European University of
Florence, the European schools and staff working outside the EC such as staff in the EU delegations.
The total assets of the Scheme at 31 December 2005 totalled EUR 260 million (2004: EUR 246 million.)
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